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($ Millions, except unit activity and per share amounts) 2009  2008 2007 2006 2005

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Total revenue $ 376 $ 449 $ 583 $ 872 $ 1,214

Impairment of housing and land inventory and 
    write-offs of option deposits

24 115 88 10 —

Gross margin (2) (82) 14 245 398

Impairment of investments in unconsolidated entities 13 38 15 — —

Net (loss) / income attributable to Brookfield 
    Homes Corporation

(28) (116) 16 148 219

(Loss) / earnings per share – diluted (1.54) (4.33) 0.58 5.45 7.04

Dividends per common share — 0.20 0.40 0.40 0.32

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets $ 1,037 $ 1,207 $ 1,351 $  1,401 $ 1,330

Total debt 382 749 735 618 636

OPERATING DATA

Home closings (units) 703 750 839 1,181 1,618

Lots sold to homebuilders (units) 469 616 1,328 834 1,242

Net new orders (units) 756 729 735 960 1,482

Backlog (units at end of year) 187 134 155 259 480

Average selling price (homes closed) $ 488,000 $ 562,000 $ 662,000 $ 679,000 $ 683,000

Lots controlled 24,245 24,109 25,371 27,616 29,512

Brookfield Homes is a land developer and homebuilder.

Our portfolio of 24,245 owned or controlled lots in California and the Washington D.C. Area, 
provides our foundation for future growth.

We plan to create value for shareholders as we continue to entitle our significant 
position in unentitled land options.

PROFILE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE



LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Despite 2009 being another challenging year for the housing market and overall economic conditions deterio-
rating, we achieved the following goals that were outlined in our 2008 Annual Report.

Goals Achievements

Continue to monetize our inventory, targeting 
$120 million of net cash from operating activities

Net cash from operating activities was $137 million

Increase lots in certain strategic market areas Acquired 3,200 lots in strategic market areas

Entitle 1,500 lots during 2009 and 2010 Completed entitlement for 1,061 lots in 2009

Strengthen our balance sheet Completed a $250 million equity rights offering

Reduce debt Net debt to capitalization ratio at December 31, 
2009 was 42%, a signifi cant improvement from 71% 
at December 31, 2008

While the challenges for our company and the homebuilding industry continue, there are indications this down 
cycle is coming to an end.  Our markets have improved with more confi dent homebuyers taking advantage of 
increased affordability and various government stimulus programs.  Our homes sold in 2009 for delivery in 
2010 were 40% higher than the comparable fi gure at December 31, 2008.

The net loss for 2009 was $28 million compared to a net loss of $116 million for 2008.  Both in 2009 and 2008, 
impairments and other charges of $37 million and $153 million, respectively, were the main reason for the net 
losses.

Our outlook for 2010, while cautiously optimistic heading into the traditional spring selling season, is tem-
pered for the second half of the year by the impact of continued economic weakness, high unemployment, 



foreclosures and shadow inventory.  The fundamentals suggest a gradual and uneven return to supply/demand 
balance. 

 The housing market has relied on federal government stimulus to bridge between weak economic fundamen-
tals until the return of job growth and consumer confi dence.  As a result, potential volatility and uncertainty 
lie ahead as this stimulus is eventually withdrawn. Strategically, this presents opportunities to capitalize on 
mispriced longer-term replacement assets as in general the industry continues to focus its lot acquisition 
efforts on short-term fi nished lot positions to meet near-term closings.

Looking longer-term, as housing production continues to be depressed historically and relative to demo-
graphic fundamentals, an undersupply of housing units is being created.  In particular, California should be 
one of the fi rst areas of the country to experience a recovery in housing due to the speed at which the dis-
tressed inventory is being absorbed and the fact that there is very little supply in the development pipeline.

Strategies that have allowed Brookfi eld Homes to meet the challenges of the current cycle, combined with 
our strengthened balance sheet should enable us to continue to capitalize on select acquisition opportuni-
ties in our strategic market areas, positioning us for stronger operating results in 2010 and beyond.

We will continue in 2010 to balance the signs of improvement in our markets with the challenges the hous-
ing industry could face with increasing mortgage interest rates, high unemployment and low consumer 
confi dence.  

Our goals for 2010 include:

•   Continue to monetize our inventory targeting $90 million of net cash from operating activities. 

•  Increase lots controlled in certain strategic market areas.

•  I mprove overall gross margins as capital is invested in new homebuilding communities.

•  Continue to meet the challenges presented in the market and position ourselves to return to profi tability.

In closing, I would like to thank our shareholders and lenders for their support and all our employees for their 
continued dedication to creating value during these challenging times.

Sincerely,

Ian G. Cockwell
President & Chief Executive Offi cer
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PART I 
 

Item 1.   Business 

Introduction 
Brookfield Homes Corporation is a land developer and homebuilder that operates its business through local business 
units responsible for projects in their geographic area (unless the context requires otherwise, references in this report 
to “we,” “our,” “us” and “the Company” refer to Brookfield Homes and the subsidiaries through which it conducts 
all of its land development and homebuilding operations). Through the activities of our operating subsidiaries, we 
entitle and develop land for our own communities and sell lots to third parties. We also design, construct and market 
single-family and multi-family homes primarily to move-up and luxury homebuyers. Our operations are currently 
focused primarily in the following markets: Northern California (San Francisco Bay Area and Sacramento); 
Southland / Los Angeles; San Diego / Riverside; and the Washington D.C. Area. We target these markets because 
we believe over the longer term they offer the following positive characteristics: strong housing demand, a 
constrained supply of developable land and close proximity to areas where we expect strong employment growth. 
Our Washington D.C. Area operations commenced in the mid 1980s and our California operations commenced in 
1996. We also own interests in unconsolidated entities that are not consolidated subsidiaries. 

General Development of Our Business 
Brookfield Homes Corporation was incorporated on August 28, 2002 in Delaware and thereafter we acquired all the 
California and Washington D.C. Area homebuilding and land development operations of Brookfield Properties 
Corporation. Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on January 7, 2003, under the 
symbol “BHS.” 
The following chart summarizes our principal operating subsidiaries and the year in which they commenced 
operations: 
Principal Subsidiary  Market  Year of Entry 

Brookfield Bay Area Holdings LLC  San Francisco Bay Area  1996 
Brookfield Southland Holdings LLC  Southland / Los Angeles  1996 
Brookfield San Diego Holdings LLC  San Diego / Riverside  1996 
Brookfield Washington LLC  Washington D.C. Area  1984 
Brookfield California Land Holdings LLC  California  1998 
 
Current Business Environment 
In 2009, selling communities saw an increased number of homebuyers take advantage of improved affordability, 
low interest rates, declining home prices and government stimulus programs. While the United States homebuilding 
industry continues to face a number of challenges with home foreclosures and tight credit standards continuing to 
have an effect on inventory and new home sale rates and prices, homebuyer confidence has improved as 
homebuyers appear to have recognized that home prices have begun to stabilize. Despite the challenging conditions 
still faced by the homebuilding market, we believe the risk is mitigated by our assets, which are largely located in 
geographic areas with a constrained supply of lots and which have demonstrated strong economic characteristics 
over the long term. For additional information and analysis of the impact on our operations and financial condition, 
see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of this 
Form 10-K. 

Overview of the Land Development and Homebuilding Industry 
The residential land development and homebuilding industry involves converting raw or undeveloped land into 
residential housing. This process begins with the purchase or control of raw land and is followed by the entitlement 
and development of the land, and the marketing and sale of homes constructed on the land. 

Raw Land 
Raw land is usually unentitled property, without the regulatory approvals which allow the construction of 
residential, industrial, commercial or mixed-use buildings. Acquiring and developing raw land requires significant 
capital expenditures and has associated carrying costs, including property taxes and interest. The selection and 
purchase of raw land provides the inventory required for development purposes and is an important aspect of the 
real estate development process. Developers of land, from time to time, sell raw or partially approved land to other 
land developers and homebuilders as part of the normal course of their business.  



 

 
2

Land Development 

Land development involves the conversion of raw land to the stage where homes may be constructed on the land. 
Regulatory bodies at the various governmental levels must approve the proposed end use of the land and many of 
the details of the development process. The time required to obtain the necessary approvals varies. In most 
jurisdictions, development occurs on a contiguous basis to existing land services such as water and sanitation.  

To shorten the development period, many developers purchase land that has been partially developed. This land is 
generally higher in value than raw land because a portion of the costs and risk associated with the development have 
been incurred.  

Generally, the first significant step in developing a residential community is to complete a draft specific plan 
incorporating major street patterns and designating parcels of land for various uses, such as parks, schools, rights of 
way and residential and commercial uses that is consistent with the local city or county general plan. This plan is 
then submitted for approval to the governmental authority with principal jurisdiction in the area such as a city or 
county. The draft specific plan is then refined with the local, state and federal agencies designating main and side 
streets, lot sizes for residential use and the sizes and locations of parcels of land to be used for schools, parks, open 
space, commercial properties and multi-family dwellings. These refinements are usually made in consultation with 
local planning officials, state agencies and, if required, federal agencies. In most cases, this process takes several 
years to complete. 

Once the plan has been approved, the developer generally commences negotiations with the local governmental 
authority on a formal development agreement, which governs the principal aspects of the construction of the 
community. These negotiations generally involve the review and approval of engineering designs pertaining to 
various aspects of the development, such as the construction and installation of sewer lines, water mains, utilities, 
roads and sidewalks. At the same time, the allocation of the costs of these items between the governmental authority 
and the developer, and the amount of fees which the developer will pay in order to obtain final approval of the plan, 
must be settled.  

Upon execution of the development agreement and grading and improvement plans, the developer generally posts a 
bond with the local governmental authority to secure the developer’s obligations and the plan receives final 
approval. The developer is generally required to convey to the local municipality, for no consideration, the land 
upon which roads, sidewalks, rights of way and parks are constructed. Land for schools, if any, is sold to the local 
school district. The school district normally takes responsibility to construct the schools with developer fees and 
local and state bonds. The developer is usually responsible for the grading of the land and the installation of sewers, 
water mains, utilities, roads and sidewalks, while the municipality is usually responsible for the construction of 
recreational and community amenities such as libraries and community centers. The municipality funds its portion 
of these costs through fees charged to the developer in connection with plan approvals and through the collection of 
property taxes from local residents.  

After a period of one to two years, following the completion by the developer of certain obligations under the 
development agreement, the municipality takes responsibility from the developer for the underground services, 
roads and sidewalks, and a portion of the improvement bond posted by the developer is released. The developer is 
generally required to maintain a minimum portion of the bond with the municipality after completion of the 
community to ensure performance by the developer of its remaining obligations under the development agreement.  
 
Home Construction and Marketing 

Residential home construction involves the actual construction of single-family houses and multi-family buildings 
such as townhouses and condominiums. Each dwelling is generally referred to as a “unit.” A planned community 
typically includes a number of “lots” on which single-family units will be situated and a smaller number of “pads” 
of land which have been designated for the construction of multi-family units, schools, parks and commercial 
buildings. The approved development plan specifically provides the total number of lots and pads in the project. The 
construction phase normally involves consulting, architectural, engineering, merchandising and marketing personnel 
who assist the homebuilder in planning the project. Residential home construction is usually performed by 
subcontractors under the supervision of the homebuilder’s construction management personnel. Marketing and sales 
of residential units are conducted by marketing sales staff employed by the homebuilder or by independent realtors. 
Pre-selling residential units before the commencement of their construction is a common sales practice that usually 
involves the creation of model homes or drawings of the proposed homes in a sales location close to or within the 
project.  
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Narrative Description of Our Business 

Through the activities of our operating subsidiaries, we develop land for our own communities and sell lots to other 
homebuilders and third parties. In our own communities, we design, construct and market single-family and 
multi-family homes primarily to move-up and luxury homebuyers. In each of our markets, we operate through local 
business units which are involved in all phases of the planning and building of our master-planned communities and 
infill developments. These phases include sourcing and evaluating land acquisitions, site planning, obtaining 
entitlements, developing the land, product design, constructing, marketing and selling homes and homebuyer 
customer service. In the five year period ended December 31, 2009, we closed a total of 5,091 homes and sold 7,099 
lots in various stages of development to other homebuilders and third parties. A home or lot is considered closed 
when title has passed to the homebuyer, and for a lot when a significant cash down payment or appropriate security 
has been received.  

We believe we have developed a reputation for innovative planning of master-planned communities and infill 
developments. Master-planned communities are new home communities that typically feature community centers, 
parks, recreational areas, schools and other amenities. Within a master-planned community there may be smaller 
neighborhoods offering a variety of home styles and price levels from which homebuyers may choose. In an infill 
development, we construct homes in previously urbanized areas on under-utilized land. In connection with planning 
and building each of our master-planned communities and infill developments, we consider, among other things, 
amenities, views, traffic flows, open space, schools and security.  

In 2009, we closed a total of 703 homes, compared with 750 in 2008. The breakdown of our home closings by 
market in the last three years is as follows: 

(Units) 2009  2008 2007

Northern California............................................................................................................... 121  139 131
Southland / Los Angeles....................................................................................................... 204  227 258
San Diego / Riverside ........................................................................................................... 136  128 150
Washington D.C. Area.......................................................................................................... 232  245 272
Corporate and Other ............................................................................................................. 6  6 14
 699  745 825
Unconsolidated Entities ........................................................................................................ 4  5 14
Total ..................................................................................................................................... 703  750 839

At December 31, 2009, we had in backlog 187 homes, an increase of 53 homes when compared to 2008. Backlog 
represents the number of homes subject to pending sales contracts. We believe $88 million of our backlog to be firm 
as of December 31, 2009, subject to future cancellations, which for 2009 were 19%. This compares to $86 million 
believed to be firm at December 31, 2008.  

We also sell serviced and unserviced lots to other homebuilders, generally on an opportunistic basis where we can 
enhance our returns, reduce our risk in a market or re-deploy our capital to an asset providing higher returns. In 
2009, we sold 469 lots to other homebuilders compared to 616 lots in 2008. 

Our average home price in 2009 from directly owned projects was $486,000, a decrease of $71,000 or 13% when 
compared to our average home price in 2008 of $557,000. The breakdown of the average home prices on our 
closings in the last three years follows:  

 2009  2008  2007 
  Average  Average   Average 
 Sales Price Sales Price Sales  Price 
 (Millions)  (Millions)  (Millions)   

Northern California...................   $ 102   $ 845,000  $ 127   $ 913,000  $ 121   $ 921,000 
Southland / Los Angeles ...........  79 388,000 94 413,000 176  682,000 
San Diego / Riverside ...............  69 507,000 68 533,000 89  597,000 
Washington D.C. Area..............  86 369,000 122 499,000 143  528,000 
Corporate and Other .................  4 635,000 4 689,000 12  831,000 
Total..........................................   $ 340  $ 486,000  $ 415  $ 557,000  $ 541   $ 656,000 

For more detailed financial information with respect to our revenues, earnings and assets, please see the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report. 
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Business Strategy 

Our goal is to maximize the total return on our common equity over the long term. The key elements of our strategy 
to achieve this goal are as follows: 

Selective Acquisition Policies  
We selectively acquire land that provides us with attractive residential projects that are consistent with our overall 
strategy and management expertise. We acquire land only if we believe that it will provide us with a minimum 
return on our invested capital. We also acquire options to purchase land rather than purchasing the land outright, in 
order to reduce our capital at risk in controlling land. In determining the minimum return we will accept, we take 
into account the risk inherent in increasing our land inventory and the specific development project. In making 
additional land acquisitions in one of our current markets, we consider our recent financial returns achieved in that 
market. In order to expand our market presence, we selectively pursue jointly owned projects with landowners and 
other homebuilders. 
During 2009, we acquired 3,254 lots and obtained control of a further 22 lots through options. All of the acquired 
lots were obtained at foreclosure sales.  

Decentralized Operating Structure  
We operate our homebuilding business through local business units responsible for projects in their geographic area. 
Each of our business units has significant experience in the land development and homebuilding industry in the 
market in which it operates. We believe that in-depth knowledge of a local market enables our business units to 
better meet the needs of our customers and to more effectively address the issues that arise on each project. Our 
business units are responsible for all elements of the land development and homebuilding process, including 
sourcing and evaluating land acquisitions, site planning and entitlements, developing the land, product design, 
constructing, marketing and selling homes, customer service and management reporting. Given the nature of their 
responsibilities, the compensation of each of the management teams in our business units is directly related to the 
business units’ results. Each business unit operates as a fully integrated profit center and the senior management of 
each business unit is compensated through a combination of base salary, a participation in his or her business unit’s 
profits and for 2009 and 2010, participations are objective based. Furthermore, each of our business unit presidents 
own a minority equity interest in their business unit. 
The corporate team sets our strategic goals and overall strategy. The corporate team approves all acquisitions, 
allocates capital to the business units based on expected returns and levels of risk, establishes succession plans, 
ensures operations maintain a consistent level of quality, evaluates and manages risk and holds management of the 
business units accountable for the performance of their business unit.  

Proactive Asset Management 
Our business generally comprises four stages where we make strategic decisions to deploy capital: entitling the raw 
land that we control; acquiring land; the development of the land; and the construction of homes on the land. As our 
assets evolve through these stages, we continually assess our ability to maximize returns on our capital, while 
attempting to minimize our risks. The decision to invest in or dispose of an asset at each stage of development is 
based on a number of factors, including the amount of capital to be deployed, the level of incremental returns at each 
stage and returns on other investment opportunities. 

Creating Communities 
We seek to acquire land that allows us to create communities that include recreational amenities such as parks, 
biking and walking trails, efficient traffic flows, schools and public service facilities. We integrate land planning and 
development with housing product design in order to deliver lifestyle, comfort and value. We cooperate with local 
and regulatory authorities in order to be responsive to community conditions, and we attempt to balance our goal of 
maximizing the value of our land with the impact of development on the community and the environment. We 
encourage our employees to actively participate in local community activities and associations.  

Risk Management  
We focus on managing risk in each stage of the land development and homebuilding process. In the land acquisition 
phase, we use options to mitigate the risk that we are unable to obtain approval for development of a proposed 
community and/or land values decline due to poor economic or real estate market conditions. We attempt to limit 
development approval risk by conducting significant due diligence before we close land acquisitions. We sell lots 
and parcels when we believe we can redeploy capital to an asset providing higher returns or reduce risk in a market.  
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When constructing homes, we strive to satisfy our customers and limit our product liability risk by:  
• selecting carefully the building materials that we use;  
• emphasizing to our employees and subcontractors that our homes be built to meet a high standard of quality  

and workmanship;  
• using only insured subcontractors to perform construction activities;  
• providing on-site quality control; and  
• providing after-sales service. 

Finally, we limit the risk of overbuilding by attempting to match our construction starts to our sales rates. We 
generally do not begin selling homes until a significant portion of the homes’ construction costs have been 
established through firm subcontractor bids.  
 
Asset Profile 

Our assets are focused on single-family and multi-family homebuilding and land development in the markets in 
which we operate. They consist primarily of housing and land inventory, investments in unconsolidated entities as 
well as consolidated land inventory not owned. Our total assets, net of deferred income taxes as of December 31, 
2009 were $997 million, with $665 million of these assets located in California, $230 million in the Washington 
D.C. Area and $102 million in other operations.  
As of December 31, 2009, we controlled 24,245 lots. Controlled lots include those we directly own, our share of 
those owned by our unconsolidated entities and those that we have the option to purchase. Our controlled lots 
provide a strong foundation for our future homebuilding business and visibility on our future cash flow. 
Approximately 70% of our owned lots are entitled and ready for development and our optioned lots are mainly 
unentitled and require various regulatory approvals before development can commence. The number of residential 
building lots we control in each of our primary markets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 follows:  
 Owned Optioned   Total   Total 
   Unconsolidated   Not   December   December 
(Units)  Directly   Entities  Consolidated Consolidated (1)   31, 2009   31, 2008 

Northern California ..................   769   ― 1,232  4,950   6,951   7,290 
Southland / Los Angeles ..........   981   254 ―  2,027   3,262   3,460 
San Diego / Riverside...............   6,852   1 2,000  ―   8,853   8,105 
Washington D.C. Area .............   2,195   1,432 ―  1,289   4,916   4,981 
Corporate and Other .................   204   59 ―  ―   263   273 
Total December 31, 2009 .........   11,001   1,746 3,232  8,266   24,245    
Total December 31, 2008 .........   11,252   1,832 ―  11,025     24,109 

(1) Includes proportionate share of lots under option related to investments in unconsolidated entities. 

Our housing and land inventory includes homes completed or under construction, developed land, raw land and 
option deposits. The book value of our housing and land inventory in each of our primary markets as of the end of 
the last two years follows: 
  December   December 
(Book Value, $ millions)  31, 2009   31, 2008 

Northern California ...............................................................................................................................   $ 201   $ 240 
Southland / Los Angeles .......................................................................................................................   123   144 
San Diego / Riverside............................................................................................................................   336   366 
Washington D.C. Area ..........................................................................................................................   227   247 
Corporate and Other ..............................................................................................................................   41   58 
Total ......................................................................................................................................................   $ 928   $ 1,055 
Total Controlled Lots (units) .................................................................................................................    24,245   24,109 

The book value of our investments in unconsolidated entities as of December 31, 2009 was $92 million. The total 
book value of the assets and liabilities of these unconsolidated entities and our share of the equity of the 
unconsolidated entities as of December 31, 2009 follows:  
 
(Book Value, $ millions) 

 December 
 31, 2009 

  December 
 31, 2008 

Assets.....................................................................................................................................................   $ 243   $ 319 
Liabilities ...............................................................................................................................................   $ 66   $ 79 
Brookfield Homes’ net investment ........................................................................................................   $ 92   $ 105 
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The book value of our investments in unconsolidated entities in each of our primary markets as of the end of the last 
two years follows: 
  December   December 
(Book Value, $ millions)  31, 2009   31, 2008 

Northern California .........................................................................................................................  $ ―   $ ― 
Southland / Los Angeles .................................................................................................................  48   46 
San Diego / Riverside......................................................................................................................  3   2 
Washington D.C. Area ....................................................................................................................  34   43 
Corporate and Other ........................................................................................................................  7   14 
Total ..............................................................................................................................................   $ 92   $ 105 

 
Property Acquisition and Sale 

Before entering into an agreement to purchase land, we complete comparative studies and analyses that assist us in 
evaluating the acquisition. We manage our risk and attempt to maximize our return on invested capital on land 
acquisitions by either entering into option agreements or joint ownership arrangements. We attempt to limit our 
development approval risk by conducting significant due diligence before we close land acquisitions. We regularly 
evaluate our land inventory and strategically sell lots and parcels of land to third parties at various stages of the 
development process to increase our returns from a project.  
 
Construction and Development 
We attempt to match our construction starts to our sales rate. We control our construction starts by constructing and 
selling homes in phases. Generally, we will not start construction of a phase of homes until sales of homes to be 
built in the phase have met predetermined targets. The size of these phases depends upon factors such as current 
sales and cancellation rates, the type of buyer targeted for a particular project, the time of year and our assessment of 
prevailing and anticipated economic conditions. We generally do not begin selling homes until a significant portion 
of the homes’ construction costs are established through firm subcontractor bids.  
We attempt to limit the number of unsold units under construction by limiting the size of each construction phase 
and closely monitoring sales activity. Building homes of a similar product type in phases also allows us to utilize 
production techniques that reduce our construction costs. The number of our unsold homes fluctuates depending 
upon the timing of completion of construction and absorption of home phases. As of December 31, 2009, we had 21 
completed and unsold homes, excluding the model homes we currently maintain. The level of completed homes has 
decreased when compared to 2008 as markets improved during 2009 and we continued to match new home starts 
with our sales rate. 

We function as a general contractor, subcontracting the construction activities for our projects. We manage 
these activities with on-site supervisory employees and informational and management control systems. We 
engage independent architectural, design, engineering and other consulting firms to assist in project planning. 
We do not have long-term contractual commitments with our subcontractors, consultants or suppliers of 
materials, who are generally selected on a competitive bid basis. We employ subcontractors for site 
improvement and for virtually all of the work involved in the construction of homes. It is our general practice 
to have our subcontractors commit to complete the specified work in accordance with written price schedules. 
These price schedules normally change to meet fluctuations in labor and material costs. We do not own heavy 
construction equipment and we have a relatively small labor force used to supervise development and 
construction, and to perform routine maintenance services. We generally have been able to obtain sufficient 
materials and subcontractors, even during times of high demand for new homes. We build a home in 
approximately five to eight months, depending upon design, the availability of raw materials and supplies, 
governmental approvals, local labor situation, time of year and other factors.  
 
Sales and Marketing 

We advertise in local newspapers and magazines and on billboards to assist us in selling our homes. We also utilize 
direct mailings, special promotional events, illustrated brochures and model homes in our marketing program. The 
internet is also an important source of information for our customers. Through the internet, potential buyers are able 
to search for their home, take a virtual video tour of selected homes, obtain general information about our projects 
and communicate directly with our personnel.  
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We sell our homes through our own sales representatives and through independent real estate brokers. Our in-house 
sales force typically works from sales offices located in model homes close to or in each community. Sales 
representatives assist potential buyers by providing them with basic floor plans, price information, development and 
construction timetables, tours of model homes and the selection of options. Sales personnel are licensed by the 
applicable real estate bodies in their respective markets, are trained by us and generally have had prior experience 
selling new homes in the local market. Our personnel, along with subcontracted marketing and design consultants, 
carefully design exteriors and interiors of each home to coincide with the lifestyles of targeted buyers. We use 
various floor plan types and elevations to provide a more varied street scene and a sense of customization for the 
buyers. 

As of December 31, 2009, we owned 68 model homes and leased nine model homes from third parties, which are 
not generally available for sale until the final build-out of a project. Generally, two to four different model homes 
are built and decorated at each project to display design features. Model homes play a role in helping buyers 
understand the efficiencies and value provided by each floor plan type. In addition to model homes, customers can 
gain an understanding of the various design features and options available to them using our design centers. At each 
design center, customers can meet with a designer and are shown the standard and upgraded selections available to 
them, including professional interior design furnishings and accessories.  

We typically sell homes using sales contracts that include cash deposits by the purchasers. Before entering into sales 
contracts, we pre-qualify our customers. However, purchasers can generally cancel sales contracts if they are unable 
to sell their existing homes, if they fail to qualify for financing, or under certain other circumstances. Although 
cancellations can delay the sale of our homes, they have historically not had a material impact on our operating 
results. During 2009, our cancellation rate of 19% was high relative to our historical average of 15%. We continue 
to closely monitor the progress of prospective buyers in obtaining financing. We also monitor and attempt to adjust 
our planned construction starts depending on the level of demand for our homes. 
 
Customer Service and Quality Control 

We pay particular attention to the product design process and carefully consider quality and choice of materials in 
order to attempt to eliminate building deficiencies. The quality and workmanship of the trade contractors we employ 
are monitored and we make regular inspections to ensure our standards are met.  

We staff each business unit with quality control and customer service staff whose role includes providing a positive 
experience for each customer throughout the pre-sale, sale, building, closing and post-closing periods. These 
employees are also responsible for providing after-sales customer service. Our quality and service initiatives include 
taking customers on a comprehensive tour of their home prior to closing and using customer survey results to 
improve our standards of quality and customer satisfaction.  
 
Mortgage Services 

We have agreements with various lenders to receive a fee on loans made by the lenders to customers we introduce to 
the lenders. Prior to the second quarter, we provided mortgage origination services to our customers in the 
Washington D.C. Area and did not retain or service the mortgages we originated. We customarily sold all of the 
loans and loan servicing rights that we originated in the secondary market within a month of origination and on a 
limited recourse basis, generally limited to early payment defaults or fraud and misrepresentation. Effective April 1, 
2009, the Company no longer originates and sells mortgages. For the year ended December 31, 2009, less than 1% 
of our revenue and less than 1% of our net income was derived from our mortgage service operations.  
 
Relationship with Affiliates 

We are a land developer and homebuilder, developing land and building homes primarily in four markets in 
California and in the Washington D.C. Area. None of our affiliates, including Brookfield Asset Management Inc. 
and Brookfield Properties Corporation, operate in similar businesses in our markets. Nevertheless, there are 
agreements among our affiliates to which we are a party or subject relating to a name license, the lease of office 
space and two unsecured revolving credit facilities. For a further description of these agreements refer to “Certain 
Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence” which is incorporated by reference into Item 
13 of this report from our definitive 2010 proxy statement, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission not later than April 30, 2010. 
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Four of our directors serve as executive officers and/or directors of our affiliates. For a description of those 
relationships refer to “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence” which is 
incorporated by reference into Item 13 of this report from our definitive 2010 proxy statement, which will be filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than April 30, 2010. 
 
Competition 

The residential homebuilding industry is highly competitive. We compete against numerous local, regional and 
national homebuilders and others in the real estate business in and near the areas where our communities are located. 
We also compete with resales of existing homes, whether by a homeowner or by a financial institution that has 
acquired a home through foreclosure, and with the rental housing market. We may compete for investment 
opportunities, financing, available land, raw materials and skilled labor with entities that possess greater financial, 
marketing and other resources than us. We also compete for land buyers with third parties in our efforts to sell lots 
to other homebuilders. Competition may increase if there is future consolidation in the land development and 
homebuilding industry.  
 
Material Contracts 

Except for two unsecured revolving credit facilities with subsidiaries of Brookfield Asset Management Inc., we are 
not party or subject to any material contracts. For a description of the material contracts refer to “Certain 
Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence” which is incorporated by reference into Item 
13 of this report from our definitive 2010 proxy statement, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the “SEC”) not later than April 30, 2010.  
 
Regulation and Environment 

We are subject to local and state laws and regulations concerning zoning, design, construction and similar matters, 
including local regulations which impose restrictive zoning and density requirements in order to limit the number of 
homes that eventually can be built within the boundaries of a particular area. We are also subject to periodic delays 
in our homebuilding projects due to building moratoria. In addition, new development projects may be subject to 
various assessments for schools, parks, streets and highways and other public improvements, the costs of which can 
be substantial. When made, these assessments can have a negative impact on our sales by raising the price that 
homebuyers must pay for our homes.  

We are also subject to local, state and federal laws and regulations concerning the protection of the environment. 
The environmental laws that apply to a given homebuilding site depend upon the site’s location, its environmental 
conditions and the present and former uses of the site and its adjoining properties. Environmental laws and 
conditions may result in delays, or cause us to incur substantial compliance and other costs, and can prohibit or 
severely restrict homebuilding activity in environmentally sensitive regions or areas.  

We do not currently have any material estimated capital expenditures related to governmental assessments or 
environmental compliance costs for the remainder of fiscal 2010, fiscal 2011 or fiscal 2012. 

In connection with our operations, some of our employees have general contractor and real estate sales licenses, 
which are subject to governmental regulations. Our employees holding those licenses are currently in material 
compliance with all such applicable regulations.  
 
Seasonality 

We have historically experienced variability in our results of operations from quarter to quarter due to the seasonal 
nature of the homebuilding business and the timing of new community openings and the closing out of projects. We 
typically experience the highest rate of orders for new homes in the first six months of the calendar year, although 
the rate of orders for new homes is highly dependent upon the number of active communities. Because new home 
deliveries trail orders for new homes by several months, we typically deliver a greater percentage of new homes in 
the second half of the year compared with the first half of the year. As a result, our revenues from sales of homes  
are generally higher in the second half of the year.  
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Employees 

As of December 31, 2009, we had 291 employees. We consider our relations with our employees to be good. Our 
construction operations are conducted primarily through independent subcontractors, thereby limiting the number of 
our employees. None of our employees are currently represented by a union or covered by a collective bargaining 
agreement. We have not recently experienced any work stoppages.  
 
Available Information 

We make available free of charge on our website our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, 
current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to these reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we file 
such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. The reports may be accessed by visiting our website at 
www.brookfieldhomes.com and clicking on the “Investor Relations” link. We will also provide these reports in 
paper format to our stockholders free of charge upon request made to our Investor Relations department. 
Information on our website is not part of this annual report on Form 10-K. 
 
NYSE Annual Disclosure 

We confirm that we have submitted a Section 303A.12 (a) CEO Certification to the New York Stock Exchange 
(“NYSE”) in 2009 and filed with the SEC the CEO / CFO certification required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act for the 2009 fiscal year. 
 
 
Item 1A.  Risk Factors 
 
This section describes the material risks associated with an investment in our common stock. Stockholders should 
carefully consider each of the risks described below and all of the other information in this Form 10-K. If any of the 
following risks occurs, our business, prospects, financial condition, results of operations or cash flow could be 
materially and adversely affected. In such an event, the trading price of shares of our common stock could decline 
substantially, and stockholders may lose all or part of the value of their shares of our common stock. 
 
Our business and results of operations will be materially and adversely affected by weakness in general 
economic, real estate and other conditions. 

The land development and homebuilding industry is cyclical and is significantly affected by changes in general and 
local economic and industry conditions, such as employment levels, availability of financing for homebuyers, 
interest rates, consumer confidence, levels of new and existing homes for sale, demographic trends and housing 
demand. In addition, an oversupply of alternatives to new homes, such as resale homes, including homes held for 
sale by investors and speculators, foreclosed homes and rental properties may reduce our ability to sell new homes, 
depress prices and reduce our margins from the sale of new homes. The United States homebuilding industry 
continues to face a number of challenges, with home foreclosures and tight credit standards continuing to have an 
effect on inventory and new home sale rates and prices. 

Homebuilders are also subject to risks related to the availability and cost of materials and labor, and adverse weather 
conditions that can cause delays in construction schedules and cost overruns. Furthermore, the market value of 
undeveloped land, buildable lots and housing inventories held by us can fluctuate significantly as a result of 
changing economic and real estate market conditions and may result in inventory impairment charges or putting our 
deposits for lots controlled under option at risk. If there are significant adverse changes in economic or real estate 
market conditions, we may have to sell homes at a loss or hold land in inventory longer than planned. Inventory 
carrying costs can be significant and can result in losses in a poorly performing project or market. We may be 
particularly affected by changes in local market conditions in California, where we derive a large proportion of our 
revenue. As a result of the present challenging market conditions, we have sold homes and lots for lower profit 
margins than in the past and we have recorded inventory and unconsolidated entity impairments and lot option 
write-off charges that resulted in a loss during fiscal 2009. If market conditions continue to deteriorate, some of our 
assets may be subject to further impairments and option write-off charges further adversely affecting our operations 
and financial results. 
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Rising mortgage rates or decreases in the availability of mortgage financing will discourage people from buying 
new homes. 

Virtually all of our customers finance their home acquisitions through lenders providing mortgage financing. Prior 
to the recent volatility in the financial markets, a variety of mortgage products were available. As a result, more 
homebuyers were able to qualify for mortgage financing. Increases in mortgage rates or decreases in the availability 
of mortgage financing could depress the market for new homes because of the increased monthly mortgage costs to 
potential homebuyers. Even if potential customers do not need financing, changes in mortgage interest rates and 
mortgage availability could make it harder for them to sell their homes to potential buyers who need financing, 
which would result in reduced demand for new homes. As a result, rising mortgage rates and reduced mortgage 
availability could adversely affect our ability to sell new homes and the price at which we can sell them.  

Since 2007, there has been a significant decrease in the type of mortgage products available and a general increase 
in the qualification requirements for mortgages. Fewer loan products and tighter loan qualifications made it more 
difficult for some borrowers to finance the purchase of our homes. This, coupled with higher mortgage interest rates 
for some mortgage products has reduced demand for new homes. These reductions in demand have adversely 
affected our operations and financial results, and the duration and severity of the effects remain uncertain.  
 
Laws and regulations related to property development and related to the environment subject us to additional 
costs and delays which adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

We must comply with extensive and complex regulations affecting the land development and homebuilding process. 
These regulations impose on us additional costs and delays, which adversely affect our business and results of 
operations. In particular, we are required to obtain the approval of numerous governmental authorities regulating 
matters such as permitted land uses, levels of density, the installation of utility services, zoning and building 
standards. These regulations often provide broad discretion to the administering governmental authorities as to the 
conditions we must meet prior to being approved for a particular development or project, if approved at all. In 
addition, new development projects may be subject to various assessments for schools, parks, streets and highways 
and other public improvements, the costs of which can be substantial. When made, these assessments can have a 
negative impact on our sales by raising the price that homebuyers must pay for our homes. We must also comply 
with a variety of local, state and federal laws and regulations concerning the protection of health and the 
environment, including with respect to hazardous or toxic substances. These environmental laws sometimes result in 
delays, cause us to incur additional costs, or severely restrict land development and homebuilding activity in 
environmentally sensitive regions or areas.  
 
If we are not able to develop and market our master-planned communities successfully, our business and results 
of operations will be adversely affected. 

Before a master-planned community generates any revenues, material expenditures are incurred to acquire land, 
obtain development approvals and construct significant portions of project infrastructure, amenities, model homes 
and sales facilities. It generally takes several years for a master-planned community development to achieve 
cumulative positive cash flow. If we are unable to develop and market our master-planned communities successfully 
and to generate positive cash flows from these operations in a timely manner, it will have a material adverse effect 
on our business and results of operations. 
 
Difficulty in retaining qualified trades workers, or obtaining required materials and supplies, will adversely affect 
our business and results of operations. 

The homebuilding industry has from time to time experienced significant difficulties in the supply of materials and 
services, including with respect to: shortages of qualified trades people; labor disputes; shortages of building 
materials; unforeseen environmental and engineering problems; and increases in the cost of certain materials 
(particularly increases in the price of lumber, wall board and cement, which are significant components of home 
construction costs). When any of these difficulties occur, it causes delays and increases the cost of constructing our 
homes. 
 
Homebuilding is subject to home warranty and construction defect claims in the ordinary course of business and 
furthermore we sometimes face liabilities when we act as a general contractor, and we are sometimes responsible 
for losses when we hire general contractors. 

As a homebuilder, we are subject to construction defect and home warranty claims arising in the ordinary course of 
our business. These claims are common in the homebuilding industry and can be costly. Further, where we act as the 
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general contractor, we are responsible for the performance of the entire contract, including work assigned to 
subcontractors. Claims may be asserted against us for construction defects, personal injury or property damage 
caused by the subcontractors, and if successful these claims give rise to liability. Where we hire general contractors, 
if there are unforeseen events like the bankruptcy of, or an uninsured or under-insured loss claimed against our 
general contractors, we sometimes become responsible for the losses or other obligations of the general contractors. 
The cost of insuring against construction defect and product liability claims are high, and the amount of coverage 
offered by insurance companies may be limited. There can be no assurance that this coverage will not be further 
restricted and become more costly. If we are not able to obtain adequate insurance against these claims in the future, 
our business and results of operations will be adversely affected. 
 
If we are not able to raise capital on favorable terms, our business and results of operations will be adversely 
affected.  

We operate in a capital intensive industry and require capital to maintain our competitive position. The failure to 
secure additional debt or equity financing or the failure to do so on favorable terms will limit our ability to grow our 
business, which in turn will adversely affect our business and results of operations. We expect to make significant 
capital expenditures in the future to enhance and maintain the operations of our properties and to expand and 
develop our real estate inventory. If our plans or assumptions change or prove to be inaccurate, or if our cash flow 
from operations proves to be insufficient due to unanticipated expenses or otherwise, we will likely seek to 
minimize cash expenditures and/or obtain additional financing in order to support our plan of operations.  

The availability of financing from banks and the public debt markets has declined significantly. Due to the 
deterioration of the credit markets and the uncertainties that exist in the economy and for homebuilders in general, 
we cannot be certain that we will be able to replace existing financing or find additional sources of financing. If 
sufficient funding, whether obtained through public or private debt, equity financing or from strategic alliances is 
not available when needed or is not available on acceptable terms, our business and results of operations will be 
adversely affected.  

Even if available, additional financing could be costly or have adverse consequences. The securities markets in 
general, and trading in our common stock in particular, have recently experienced significant volatility. As a result, 
our market capitalization has recently been less than the value of our stockholders’ equity. To the extent that our 
market capitalization remains below the value of our stockholders’ equity, the amount of dilution our stockholders 
would experience will be increased should we issue additional shares of common stock. 
 
Our debt and leverage could adversely affect our financial condition. 

Our total debt as of December 31, 2009 was $382 million, of which a total of $323 million matures prior to the end 
of 2011. Our leverage could have important consequences, including the following: our ability to obtain additional 
financing for working capital, capital expenditures or acquisitions may be impaired in the future; a substantial 
portion of our cash flow from operations must be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on our debt, 
thereby reducing the funds available to us for other purposes; some of our borrowings are and will continue to be at 
variable rates of interest, which will expose us to the risk of increased interest rates; and our substantial leverage 
may limit our flexibility to adjust to changing economic or market conditions, reduce our ability to withstand 
competitive pressures and make us more vulnerable to a general economic downturn. 

If any of these conditions occur, or should we be unable to repay these obligations as they become due, our financial 
condition will be adversely affected. In addition, our various debt instruments contain financial and other restrictive 
covenants that may limit our ability to, among other things, borrow additional funds that we might need in the 
future. We also guarantee shortfalls under some of our community bond debt, when the revenues, fees and 
assessments which are designed to cover principal and interest and other operating costs of the bonds are not paid. 

We finance each of our projects individually. As a result, to the extent we increase the number of our projects and 
our related investment, our total debt obligations may increase. In general, we repay the principal of our debt from 
the proceeds of home closings. 

Based on our interest rate sensitive net debt levels as of December 31, 2009, a 1% change up or down in interest 
rates could have either a negative or positive effect of approximately $1 million on our cash flows, refer also to the 
section of our Form 10-K entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations – Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks – Interest Rates.” 
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Our business and results of operations will be adversely affected if poor relations with the residents of our 
communities negatively impact our sales. 

As a master-planned community developer, we are sometimes expected by community residents to resolve any 
issues or disputes that arise in connection with the development of our communities. Our sales may be negatively 
affected if any efforts made by us to resolve these issues or disputes are unsatisfactory to the affected residents, 
which in turn would adversely affect our results of operations. In addition, our business and results of operations 
would be adversely affected if we are required to make material expenditures related to the settlement of these issues 
or disputes, or to modify our community development plans. 
 
Our business is susceptible to adverse weather conditions and natural disasters. 

Homebuilding in California and the Washington D.C. Area is susceptible to, and is significantly affected by, adverse 
weather conditions and natural disasters such as hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, droughts, floods and fires. 
These adverse weather conditions and natural disasters can cause delays and increased costs in the construction of 
new homes and the development of new communities. If insurance is unavailable to us or is unavailable on 
acceptable terms, or if our insurance is not adequate to cover business interruption or losses resulting from adverse 
weather or natural disasters, our business and results of operations will be adversely affected. In addition, damage to 
new homes caused by adverse weather or a natural disaster can cause our insurance costs to increase. 
 
Increased insurance risk adversely affects our business. 

We are confronting reduced insurance capacity, and generally lower limits for insurance against some of the risks 
associated with our business. Some of the actions that have been or could be taken by insurance companies include: 
increasing insurance premiums; requiring higher self-insured retention and deductibles; requiring collateral on 
surety bonds; imposing additional exclusions, such as with respect to sabotage and terrorism; and refusing to 
underwrite certain risks and classes of business. The imposition of any of the preceding actions has and will 
continue to adversely affect our ability to obtain appropriate insurance coverage at reasonable costs.  
 
Tax law changes could make home ownership more expensive or less attractive. 

Tax law changes could make home ownership more expensive or less attractive. Significant expenses of owning a 
home, including mortgage interest expense and real estate taxes, generally are deductible expenses for an 
individual’s federal and, in some cases, state income taxes subject to various limitations under current tax law and 
policy. If the federal government or a state government changes income tax laws to eliminate or substantially 
modify these income tax deductions, then the after-tax cost of owning a new home would increase substantially. 
This could adversely impact demand for, and/or sales prices of new homes. 
 
Residential homebuilding is a competitive industry, and competitive conditions adversely affect our results of 
operations. 

The residential homebuilding industry is highly competitive. Residential homebuilders compete not only for 
homebuyers, but also for desirable properties, building materials, labor and capital. We compete with other local, 
regional and national homebuilders, often within larger communities designed, planned and developed by such 
homebuilders. Any improvement in the cost structure or service of our competitors will increase the competition we 
face. We also compete with the resale of existing homes including foreclosed homes, sales by housing speculators 
and investors and rental housing. Competitive conditions in the homebuilding industry could result in: difficulty in 
acquiring suitable land at acceptable prices; increased selling incentives; lower sales volumes and prices; lower 
profit margins; impairments in the value of our inventory and other assets; increased construction costs; and delays 
in construction. 
 
Provisions in our charter documents and Delaware law may make it difficult for a third party to acquire us, 
which could depress the price of our securities. 

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation, our by-laws and Delaware law could delay, defer or prevent a change 
of control of our Company. These provisions, which include authorizing the board of directors to issue preferred 
stock and limiting the persons who may call special meetings of stockholders, could also discourage proxy contests 
and make it more difficult for stockholders to elect directors and take other corporate actions. 
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We are also subject to provisions of Delaware law that could delay, deter or prevent us from entering into an 
acquisition, including Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which prohibits a Delaware 
corporation from engaging in a business combination with an interested stockholder unless specific conditions are 
met. The existence of any of the above factors could adversely affect the market price of our common stock. 
 
The trading price of our securities could fluctuate significantly and could be adversely affected because 
Brookfield Asset Management Inc. beneficially owns approximately 82.4% of our common stock. 

The trading prices of shares of our common stock in the open market cannot be predicted. The trading prices could 
fluctuate significantly in response to factors such as: variations in our quarterly or annual operating results and 
financial condition; changes in government regulations affecting our business; the announcement of significant 
events by us or our competitors; market conditions specific to the homebuilding industry; changes in general 
economic conditions; differences between our actual financial and operating results and those expected by investors 
and analysts; changes in analysts’ recommendations or projections; the depth and liquidity of the market for shares 
of our common stock; investor perception of the homebuilding industry; events in the homebuilding industry; 
investment restrictions; and our dividend policy. In addition, securities markets have experienced significant price 
and volume fluctuations in recent years that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating 
performance of particular companies. These broad fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our 
common stock. 

Also, Brookfield Asset Management Inc. beneficially owns approximately 82.4% of the outstanding shares of our 
common stock, on an as converted basis assuming the full conversion of our 8% convertible preferred stock owned 
by it. If Brookfield Asset Management Inc. should decide in the future to sell any of our securities owned 
beneficially by it, the sale (or the perception of the market that a sale may occur) could adversely affect the trading 
price of those securities. 
 
If we are not able to retain our executive officers, our business and results of operations could be adversely 
affected. 

We do not have employment agreements with any of our executive officers, which could affect our ability to retain 
their services. Should we lose the services of one or all of our executive officers and they cannot be adequately 
replaced, our ability to accomplish the objectives set forth in our business plan could be adversely affected.  
 
Our relationships with our affiliates may be on terms more or less favorable than those that could be obtained 
from third parties. 

Brookfield Asset Management Inc. beneficially owns approximately 60.44% of our currently outstanding common 
stock (82.4% assuming full conversion by it of our 8% convertible preferred stock owned by it) and our 
relationships with Brookfield Asset Management Inc. and its affiliates include two unsecured revolving credit 
facilities and the lease of our administrative office in Toronto. There can be no assurance that these arrangements are 
on terms at least as favorable to us as those that could be negotiated with third parties, or that procedural protections 
put in place to simulate arm’s length negotiations, such as the prior approval of related party transactions by our 
independent directors, will have such effect. Conversely, the terms of our agreements with our affiliates could be 
more favorable to us than would be available from a third party. In such event, should we be required to replace 
these arrangements, there can be no assurance that we could obtain terms as least at favorable as those with our 
affiliates.  
 
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 
 
None. 
 
Item 2.  Properties 
In addition to real estate held for development and sale, which we either own or hold under an option to purchase, 
we lease and maintain an administrative office in Toronto, Canada. Our Toronto lease is a sublease from Brookfield 
Asset Management Inc. 

In addition, we have other offices located in the markets in which we conduct business, generally in our 
communities or in leased space. None of these other office premises are material to our business. We believe that 
our office space is suitable and adequate for our needs for the foreseeable future.  
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Item 3.  Legal Proceedings 
We are party to various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of our business. We believe that none of these 
actions, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or 
results of operations. 
 
Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
None. 
 
 
PART II 
 
Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer 
Purchases of Equity Securities 
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “BHS,” and began regular trading 
on January 7, 2003. The following table shows high and low sales prices for our common stock, for the periods 
included, as reported by the NYSE. 

 Year Ended December 31, 2009  Year Ended December 31, 2008 
   Cash Dividends    Cash Dividends 
 High Low  Per Share   High Low  Per Share 
1st Quarter ......................  $ 4.54  $ 1.49  ―   $ 17.52  $ 10.51  ― 
2nd Quarter .....................  $ 5.86  $ 3.20   ―   $ 17.30  $ 12.28  $ 0.20 
3rd Quarter......................  $ 8.46  $ 3.19  ―   $ 16.75  $ 9.26  ― 
4th Quarter......................  $ 8.10  $ 5.25   ―   $ 13.90  $ 1.49   ― 
 
As of February 18, 2010, there were approximately 833 holders of record of our common stock.   

Our Board of Directors periodically reviews our dividend policy. Future dividends on our common stock, if any, 
will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon, among other things, our results of 
operations, cash requirements and surplus, financial condition, contractual restrictions, investment opportunities and 
other factors that our Board of Directors considers relevant. We do not currently pay a dividend on our common 
stock. 

There are no current or anticipated contractual terms in our credit or other arrangements that restrict our ability to 
pay dividends, other than the requirements imposed by our project specific financings that require Brookfield 
Homes Holdings Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiary, to maintain a tangible net worth of at least $250 million, a net 
debt to tangible net worth ratio of 2.50 to 1.00 and a net debt to capitalization ratio of no greater than 65%, and the 
requirements of our revolving credit facility with Brookfield Asset Management Inc., that currently requires 
Brookfield Homes Corporation to maintain minimum stockholders’ equity of $300 million and a consolidated net 
debt to book capitalization ratio of no greater than 70%. Refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments” for additional 
information about these restrictions. In addition, the terms of our 8% convertible preferred stock contain limitations 
on when we may pay dividends on our common stock. 

Our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program that allows us to repurchase in aggregate up to  
$144 million of our outstanding common shares, of which the remaining amount approved for repurchases at 
December 31, 2009 was approximately $49 million. During the three months and year ended December 31, 2009, 
we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock. 
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans 

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans approved by stockholders as of December 31, 2009. 
We have no equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders. 

 (a) 
 
 

Number of Securities to be 
Issued Upon Exercise of 

Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights 

(b) 
 
 

Weighted-average 
Exercise Price of 

Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights 

 (c) 
Number of Securities 

Remaining Available for 
Future Issuance Under 

Equity Compensation 
Plans (Excluding Securities 

Reflected in Column (a)) 
Equity compensation plans 
  approved by stockholders ................. 

 
2,155,000 

 
$10.21 

  
1,841,000 

Equity compensation plans not  
 approved by stockholders ................. 

 
none 

 
n/a 

  
none 

Total ...................................................... 2,155,000 $10.21  1,841,000 

Performance Graph 

The following graph illustrates the cumulative total stockholder return on Brookfield Homes’ common stock for the 
last five fiscal years assuming a hypothetical investment of $100 and a reinvestment of all dividends paid on such 
investment, compared to Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the Standard & Poor’s Homebuilding 500 Index. 
 

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN 
PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

  

Base Period 

 
Period ended December 31  Legend 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

Brookfield Homes Corporation       100 147.68 112.87 48.44 13.46 24.92 
S & P 500 Homebuilding Index   ■ 100 126.59 101.27 41.63 25.43 30.09 
S & P 500 Index    100 104.91 121.48 128.15 80.74 102.11 

 

Item 6.  Selected Financial Data 
The following tables include selected historical consolidated financial data for each year in the five year period 
ended December 31, 2009.  

This selected financial data should be read along with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations” and our audited historical consolidated financial statements and the related 
notes included elsewhere in this report.  
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United States GAAP 
Our statement of operations data, balance sheet data and supplementary financial data prepared in accordance with 
U.S. GAAP and our operating data are as follows:  
 Years Ended December 31 
Statement of Operations Data 
($ millions, except per share amounts)  

 
2009 

 
2008 2007 

 
2006 2005 

Total revenue (1)..........................................   $ 376  $ 449  $ 583  $ 872  $ 1,214 
Housing revenue ........................................    340   415   541   784   1,074 
Impairment of housing and land inventory  
 and write-offs of option deposits............  

 
24 

 
115 

 
88 

 
10 

 
— 

Total gross margin (2) .................................  (2) (82) 14 245 398 
Impairment of investments in  
 unconsolidated entities ...........................  

 
13 

 
38 

 
15 

 
— 

 
— 

Net (loss) / income .....................................    (33)   (133)   23   167    255 
Net (loss) / income attributable to 
Brookfield Homes Corporation..................  

 
(28)

 
(116)

 
16 

 
148 

 
219 

Diluted (loss) / earnings per share..............  (1.54)  (4.33)  0.58  5.45   7.04 
Cash dividends per common share ............   —  0.20  0.40  0.40   0.32 

 
 At December 31 

Balance Sheet Data ($ millions)  2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Housing and land inventory (3) ....................   $ 928  $ 1,055  $ 1,236  $ 1,225  $ 988 
Total assets..................................................  1,037 1,207 1,351 1,401 1,330 
Total debt (4) ................................................  382 749 735 618 636 
Total liabilities (5) ........................................  551 944 969 1,030 1,065 
Total equity (5) .............................................  486 263 382 371 265 

 
 Years Ended December 31 
Supplemental Financial Data ($ millions)  2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Cash provided by / (used in):        
Operating activities .....................................  $ 137  $ 66  $ (44)  $ 26  $ 60 
Investment activities ...................................  (9) (32) (58) (47) (5) 
Financing activities .....................................  (128) (43) 24 (91) (44) 
Net debt to total capitalization percent (6)....   42%   71%   61%   53%   58% 

 
 Years Ended December 31 

Operating Data  2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Home closings (units) .................................  703 750 839 1,181 1,618 
Lots sold to homebuilders (units)................  469 616 1,328 834 1,242 
Net new orders (units) (7).............................  756 729 735 960 1,482 
Backlog (units at end of period) (8) ..............  187 134 155 259 480 
Average selling price ..................................   $ 488,000  $ 562,000  $ 662,000  $ 679,000  $ 683,000 
Lots controlled ............................................  24,245 24,109 25,371 27,616 29,512 

(1) To conform to the current year presentation, for years prior to 2007, total revenue excludes other income.  
(2) Gross margin represents the contribution from our housing and land projects, after all costs for development and construction, including 

related overhead and interest, impairments and other charges and before all other income / (expense), selling, general and administrative 
expense and noncontrolling interest.  

(3) Housing and land inventory includes investment in unconsolidated entities and consolidated land inventory not owned. 
(4) To conform to the current year presentation, for years prior to 2007, total debt excludes deferred compensation which is now shown as a 

component of accounts payable and other liabilities. Total debt is defined as project specific financings and revolving and other financings. 
(5) To conform to the current year presentation, for years prior to 2009, total liabilities excludes noncontrolling interest of unconsolidated 

entities which is now shown as a component of total equity. 
(6) Net debt to total capitalization percent is defined as total interest bearing debt less cash multiplied by 100 and divided by total interest 

bearing debt less cash plus equity and other interests in consolidated subsidiaries (total capitalization). 
(7) Net new orders for any period represents the aggregate of all homes ordered by customers, net of cancellations, including unconsolidated 

entities.  
(8) Backlog represents the number of new homes subject to pending sales contracts, including unconsolidated entities.  
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Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
The following discussion and analysis should be read along with “Selected Financial Data” and our consolidated 
financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this report. This discussion includes 
forward-looking statements that reflect our current views with respect to future events and financial performance 
and that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially 
from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including risks discussed in 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Forward-Looking 
Statements” and Item 1A – “Risk Factors” included elsewhere in this report.  

Forward-Looking Statements  

This annual report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the United States 
federal securities laws. The words “may,” “believe,” “will,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “planned,” “estimate,” “project,” 
“future,” and other expressions which are predictions of or indicate future events and trends and which do not relate 
to historical matters identify forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements in this annual report on 
Form 10-K include, among others, statements with respect to: 

• ability to create shareholder value; 
• business goals and strategy; 
• strategies for shareholder value creation; 
• the stability of home prices; 
• effect of challenging conditions on us; 
• financing sources; 
• ability to generate sufficient cash flow from our assets in 2010 and 2011 to repay maturing project specific 
 financings; 
• the visibility of our future cash flow; 
• expected backlog and closings; 
• sufficiency of our access to capital resources; 
• supply and demand equilibrium; 
• the timing of the effect of interest rate changes on our cash flows; 
• the effect on our business of existing lawsuits; and 
• whether or not our letters of credit or performance bonds will be drawn upon. 

Reliance should not be placed on forward-looking statements because they involve both known and unknown risks, 
uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual results to differ materially from the anticipated future 
results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those set forward in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: 
• changes in general economic, real estate and other conditions; 
• mortgage rate and availability changes; 
• availability of suitable undeveloped land at acceptable prices; 
• adverse legislation or regulation; 
• ability to obtain necessary permits and approvals for the development of our land; 
• availability of labor or materials or increases in their costs; 
• ability to develop and market our master-planned communities successfully; 
• ability to obtain regulatory approvals; 
• confidence levels of consumers; 
• ability to raise capital on favorable terms; 
• our debt and leverage; 
• adverse weather conditions and natural disasters; 
• relations with the residents of our communities; 
• risks associated with increased insurance costs or unavailability of adequate coverage;  
• ability to obtain surety bonds; 
• competitive conditions in the homebuilding industry, including product and pricing pressures;  
• ability to retain our executive officers; 
• relationships with our affiliates; and 
• additional risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control, referred to in this Form 10-K and our 

other SEC filings.  
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Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether 
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. However, any further disclosures made on related subjects 
in subsequent reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K should be consulted. 
 
Overview 

During the year ended December 31, 2009, selling communities have seen an increased number of homebuyers take 
advantage of improved affordability, low interest rates, declining home prices and government stimulus programs. 
While the United States homebuilding industry continues to face a number of challenges with home foreclosures and 
tight credit standards continuing to have an effect on inventory and new home sale rates and prices, homebuyer 
confidence has improved as homebuyers appear to have recognized that home prices have begun to stabilize. 
Despite the challenging conditions still faced by the homebuilding market, we believe the risk is mitigated by our 
assets which are largely located in geographic areas with a constrained supply of lots and which have demonstrated 
strong economic characteristics over the long term. 
 
Through the activities of our operating subsidiaries, we entitle and develop land for our own communities and sell 
lots to third parties. We also design, construct and market single and multi-family homes primarily to move-up and 
luxury homebuyers. 
 
We operate in the following geographic regions, which are presented as our reportable segments: Northern 
California (San Francisco Bay Area and Sacramento), Southland / Los Angeles, San Diego / Riverside and the 
Washington D.C. Area. Our other operations that do not meet the quantitative thresholds for separate segment 
disclosure are included in “Corporate and Other.” 
 
For the five year period 2005 to 2009, cash provided from operations was $245 million, which was used primarily to 
return cash to stockholders through the repurchase of shares and to repay debt. Despite the continuing challenges of 
the United States housing market, we believe our business is positioned to create further stockholder value over the 
long term through the selective control of a number of strategic projects and the overall level of lots controlled. 
 
The 24,245 lots that we control, 15,979 of which we own directly, are held through unconsolidated entities or 
consolidated inventory not owned, provide a strong foundation for our future homebuilding business and visibility 
on our future cash flow. We believe we add value to the lots we control through entitlements, development and the 
construction of homes. In allocating capital to our operations, we generally limit our risk on unentitled land by 
optioning such land positions in all our markets thereby mitigating our capital at risk. Option contracts for the 
purchase of land permit us to control lots for an extended period of time.  
 
Homebuilding is our primary source of revenue and has represented approximately 90% of our total revenue since 
2003. Operating in markets with higher price points and catering to move-up and luxury buyers, our average sales 
price in 2009 of $488,000 was well in excess of the national average sales price. We also sell serviced and 
unserviced lots to other homebuilders, generally on an opportunistic basis where we can reduce our risk in a market 
or redeploy capital to an asset providing higher returns. In 2009, we sold 469 lots to homebuilders. The number of 
lots we sell may vary significantly from period to period due to the timing and nature of such sales which are also 
affected by local market conditions. 
 
Our housing and land inventory, investments in unconsolidated entities, and consolidated land inventory not owned 
together comprised 89% of our total assets as of December 31, 2009. In addition, we had $109 million in other 
assets. Other assets consist of restricted cash of $7 million, income taxes receivable of $40 million, deferred taxes of 
$40 million, and other receivables of $22 million. Homebuyer receivables consist primarily of proceeds due from 
homebuyers on the closing of homes. 
 
As at December 31, 2009, the market capitalization of our common stock was $227 million, compared to our book 
value of $229 million.  Market capitalization will vary depending on market sentiment and may not have a 
relationship to the underlying value of a share of our common stock over the longer term. 
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Results of Operations 
 Years Ended December 31 

Selected Financial Information ($US  millions)  2009 2008 2007 
Revenue:    
 Housing...........................................................................................  $ 340  $ 415  $ 541 
 Land................................................................................................ 36 34 42 
Total revenues ................................................................................... 376 449 583 
Direct cost of sales ............................................................................. (354) (416) (481)
Impairment of housing and land inventory and write-offs of option ..
 deposits ...........................................................................................

 
(24) 

 
(115) 

 
(88)

Gross margin  / (loss) .......................................................................... (2) (82) 14 
Selling, general and administrative expense ....................................... (52) (69) (69)
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities ................................. 1 3 13 
Impairment of unconsolidated entities................................................ (13) (38) (15)
Other income / (expense).................................................................... 13 (18) (6)
Loss before income taxes.................................................................... (53) (204) (63)
Income tax recovery ........................................................................... 20 71 72 
Net (loss) / income.............................................................................. (33) (133) 9 
Less net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests .......................... 5 17 7 
Net (loss) / income attributable to Brookfield Homes Corporation ....  $ (28)  $ (116)  $ 16 
     

 Years Ended December 31 
Segment Information  2009  2008 2007 

Housing revenue ($US millions):    
 Northern California.........................................................................   $ 102  $ 127  $ 121 
 Southland / Los Angeles .................................................................   79  94  176 
 San Diego / Riverside .....................................................................   69  68  89 
 Washington D.C. Area....................................................................   86  122  143 
 Corporate and Other .......................................................................   4  4  12 
 Total................................................................................................   $ 340  $ 415  $ 541 
    
Land revenue ($US millions):    
 Northern California.........................................................................   $ —  $ 2  $ — 
 Southland / Los Angeles .................................................................   —  —  30 
 San Diego / Riverside .....................................................................   20  19  — 
 Washington D.C. Area....................................................................   8  13  12 
 Corporate and Other .......................................................................   8  —  — 
 Total................................................................................................   $ 36  $ 34  $ 42 
     
Impairment of housing and land inventory and write-offs of option 
deposits ($US millions): 

    

 Northern California.........................................................................   $ —  $ 21  $ 5 
 Southland / Los Angeles .................................................................    3   16   3 
 San Diego / Riverside .....................................................................    1   42   33 
 Washington D.C. Area....................................................................    13   36   47 
 Corporate and Other .......................................................................    7   —   — 
 Total................................................................................................  $ 24  $ 115  $ 88 
    
Gross margin / (loss) ($US millions):    
 Northern California.........................................................................   $ 1  $ (18)  $ 12 
 Southland / Los Angeles .................................................................   5  (3)  36 
 San Diego / Riverside .....................................................................   (4)  (42)  (10)
 Washington D.C. Area....................................................................   4  (17)  (26)
 Corporate and Other .......................................................................   (8)  (2)  2 
 Total................................................................................................   $ (2)  $ (82)  $ 14 
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 Years Ended December 31 
 2009  2008  2007 
Home closings (units):     
 Northern California.........................................................................   121  139  131 
 Southland / Los Angeles .................................................................   204  227  258 
 San Diego / Riverside .....................................................................   136  128  150 
 Washington D.C. Area....................................................................   232  245  272 
 Corporate and Other .......................................................................   6  6  14 
 Consolidated Total..........................................................................   699  745  825 
 Unconsolidated Entities ..................................................................   4  5  14 
 Total................................................................................................   703  750  839 

Average selling price ($US):      
 Northern California.........................................................................   $ 845,000  $ 913,000  $ 921,000 
 Southland / Los Angeles .................................................................  388,000 413,000 682,000 
 San Diego / Riverside .....................................................................  507,000 533,000 597,000 
 Washington D.C. Area....................................................................  369,000 499,000 528,000 
 Corporate and Other........................................................................  635,000 689,000 831,000 
 Consolidated Average.....................................................................    486,000   557,000   656,000 
 Unconsolidated Entities ..................................................................    821,000   1,288,000   1,020,000 
 Average...........................................................................................   $ 488,000  $ 562,000  $ 662,000 

Lots controlled (units at end of year):      
  Northern California ........................................................................  2,001 1,108 1,325 
  Southland / Los Angeles.................................................................  1,235 1,417 1,993 
  San Diego / Riverside .....................................................................  8,853 6,605 6,064 
  Washington D.C. Area....................................................................  3,627 3,681 8,371 
  Corporate and Other .......................................................................  263 273 282 
   15,979 13,084 18,035 
  Lots under option (1)........................................................................  8,266 11,025 7,336 
  Total ...............................................................................................  24,245 24,109 25,371 

 (1) Includes options not consolidated and proportionate share of lots under option related to unconsolidated entities. 
 
Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2008 
 
Net Income 
 
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $33 million, a decline in net loss of $101 million when 
compared to net loss of $133 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. The decrease in net loss primarily 
relates to a decrease of $116 million in impairments and write-offs on our housing and land assets and investments 
in unconsolidated entities, lower selling general and administrative costs of $17 million, and an increase in income 
from our interest rate swap contracts of $30 million, partially offset by a decrease in housing and land gross margin 
of $10 million and a reduction in tax recoveries of $51 million. 
 
Results of Operations 
 
Company-wide: Housing revenue was $340 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of  
$75 million when compared to the same period in 2008. The decrease in housing revenue was primarily due to fewer 
home closings for 2009 of 703 units, a decrease of 47 units or 6% when compared to 2008 as well as reduced 
average selling prices and product mix.  
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Housing revenues were net of incentives of $57 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to  
$73 million for the same period in 2008. Our incentives on homes closed by reportable segment for the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 
 
 Years Ended December 31 
 2009 2008 
 Incentives   % of Gross Incentives   % of Gross 
($ millions) Recognized   Revenues Recognized   Revenues 

Northern California ..........................................   $ 27   26%  $ 37   29% 
Southland / Los Angeles...................................   5   7%  8   8% 
San Diego / Riverside.......................................   4   6%  4   5% 
Washington D.C. Area .....................................   21   24%  24   20% 
Corporate and Other .........................................   —   —  —   — 
Total .................................................................   $ 57   17%  $ 73   18% 
 
Land revenue in 2009 totaled $36 million on the sale of 469 lots to homebuilders compared with $34 million in 2008 
on the sale of 616 lots. Our land revenues may vary significantly from period to period due to the timing and nature 
of land sales, as they generally occur on an opportunistic basis and are affected by local market conditions.  
 
Gross margin was a loss of $2 million compared with a loss of $82 million for the same period in 2008. The increase 
in gross margin was primarily a result of a decrease in impairment charges and other write-offs, partially offset by 
fewer home closings during the year ended December 31, 2009, as well as reduced average selling prices. Included 
in gross margin is a loss of $19 million on the abandonment of 2,610 lots which was offset in the same market area 
with the extension and renegotiation of a land option contract on 2,000 lots, which is included in consolidated land 
inventory not owned. 
 
In 2009, we recognized impairment charges and option write-offs on our housing and land inventory of $24 million 
compared to $115 million in 2008. The impairment charges and option write-offs related primarily to lots located in 
the Southland, Washington D.C. Area and Corporate and Other reportable segments, optioned lots located primarily 
in California and the Washington D.C. Area, as well as a commercial site located in the Washington D.C. Area 
reportable segment. 
 
The number of projects where impairment charges and option write-offs were recognized and the fair value of the 
projects impaired for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 
 Years Ended December 31 
 2009  2008 
  Projects Fair Value  Projects    Fair Value
 Tested for Projects of Projects  Tested for  Projects  of Projects

($ millions) Impairment Impaired Impaired  Impairment  Impaired  Impaired

Northern California ....................   6   1   $ ―   9   3   $ 91 
Southland / Los Angeles.............   4   1   14   6   3   49 
San Diego / Riverside.................   15   ―   ―   14   3   91 
Washington D.C. Area ...............   18   3   5   22   13   79 
Corporate and Other ...................   3   2   6   2   ―   ― 
Total ...........................................   46   7   $ 25   53   22   $ 310 
 
A summary of our gross margin / (loss) is as follows: 
 Years Ended December 31 
($ millions) 2009   2008 

Housing ..................................................................................................................................   $ 45   $ 52 
Land .......................................................................................................................................  (23)  (19) 
Impairment charges / write-downs .........................................................................................  (24)  (115) 
  $ (2)   $ (82) 
 
Northern California: Housing revenue was $102 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of  
$25 million when compared to the same period in 2008. The gross margin on housing was $10 million, consistent 
with the same period in 2008. While there were fewer option contract write-offs and impairment charges recorded in 
2009, this was offset by lower average selling prices. Impairments and option contract write-offs for the year ended 
December 31, 2009 were nil compared with $21 million for the same period in 2008. 
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Land revenue was nil in 2009, compared with $2 million in 2008. The land revenue in 2008 comprised the sale of 78 
raw lots. The gross margin on land revenue was $(9) million in 2009 compared to $(7) million in 2008. The negative 
gross margin on land revenue in 2009 comprised a loss on the disposal to another homebuilder of a 120 unit senior 
living facility site. 

Southland / Los Angeles: Housing revenue was $79 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of  
$15 million when compared to the same period in 2008. The decrease for the year ended December 31, 2009 
compared to the same period in 2008 was primarily attributable to a decrease in home closings of 23 units. The gross 
margin for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $5 million compared with $(3) million for the same period in 
2008. The increase in the gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to the same period in 2008 
was primarily a result of fewer impairment charges partially offset by lower average selling prices. Impairment 
charges for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $3 million compared to $16 million for the same period in 
2008. 

San Diego / Riverside: Housing revenue was $69 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, an increase of  
$1 million when compared to the same period in 2008. Land revenue was $20 million for the year ended December 
31, 2009, compared with $19 million for the same period in 2008. During the year ended December 31, 2009, 60 
lots located in the Carlsbad region, 150 lots located in the Imperial Valley region, as well as 71 lots located in the 
Inland Empire region were sold. The gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $(4) million 
compared with $(42) million for the same period in 2008. The increase in the gross margin was primarily a result of 
fewer impairment charges partially offset by reduced selling prices. Impairment charges and option write-offs for 
the year ended December 31, 2009 were $1 million compared with $42 million for the same period in 2008. 

Washington D.C. Area: Housing revenue was $86 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of  
$36 million when compared to the same period in 2008 primarily due to a decrease in home closings and reduced 
selling prices. Land revenue was $8 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with $13 million for 
the same period in 2008. The gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $4 million compared with 
$(17) million for the same period in 2008. The increase in gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2009 
compared to the same period in 2008 was primarily a result of a decrease in impairment charges and other write-
offs, partially offset by reduced selling prices. Impairment charges and other write-offs for the year ended December 
31, 2009 were $13 million compared with $36 million for the same period in 2008. 

Other Income and Expenses 
Equity in earnings from investments in unconsolidated entities in 2009 totaled $1 million, a decrease of $2 million 
when compared to 2008. The impairment of our investments in unconsolidated entities totaled $13 million in 2009 
compared to $38 million in 2008. The impairment charges in 2009 primarily relate to 907 lots in the Inland Empire 
of California in one project and the write-off of costs related to a commercial site in the Washington D.C. Area. 

Other income / (expense) in 2009 totaled $13 million, an increase of $31 million when compared to 2008. The 
components of the 2009 and 2008 other income are summarized as follows: 

 Years Ended December 31 
($ millions) 2009   2008 
Change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts ............................................................   $ 11   $ (19) 
Other ...................................................................................................................................  2  1 

  $ 13   $ (18) 
 
Selling, general and administrative expense was $52 million in 2009, a decrease of $17 million when compared to 
2008. The components of the 2009 and 2008 expense are summarized as follows: 

 Years Ended December 31 
($ millions) 2009   2008 
General and administrative expenses...................................................................................   $ (30)   $ (35) 
Sales and marketing expenses..............................................................................................  (22)  (30) 
Stock compensation.............................................................................................................  (4)  7 
Change in fair value of equity swap contracts .....................................................................  4  (11) 

  $ (52)   $ (69) 

 



 

 
23

Sales Activity 

Our net new home orders for the year ended December 31, 2009 were 756 units, an increase of 27 units compared to 
2008. Based on our average of 24 active selling communities during the year, our average sales rate during 2009 was 
approximately 0.6 sales per week per community, which is 50% higher per selling community than 2008 but below 
what may be considered a normal housing market of one sale per week per active selling community. The net new 
home orders in units for 2009 and 2008 by reportable segment are as follows: 

 Years Ended December 31 
 2009   2008 
Northern California..............................................................................................................   135    122 
Southland / Los Angeles ...................................................................................................... 218  237 
San Diego / Riverside .......................................................................................................... 151  128 
Washington D.C. Area......................................................................................................... 263  233 
Corporate and Other............................................................................................................. (14)  7 
Consolidated Total............................................................................................................... 753  727 
Unconsolidated Entities ....................................................................................................... 3  2 
Total  756    729 

Net new orders for any period represent the aggregate of all homes ordered by customers, net of cancellations. 
 
Our backlog, which represents the number of new homes subject to pending sales contracts, at December 31, 2009 
and 2008 by reportable segment are as follows: 
 Backlog December 31 
 2009  2008 
  Units   $ millions   Units   $ millions 

Northern California ..........................................................   24   $ 24   10   $ 9 
Southland / Los Angeles ..................................................   69   29   55   23 
San Diego / Riverside.......................................................   23   11   8   4 
Washington D.C. Area .....................................................   71   24   40   35 
Corporate and Other.........................................................   —   —   20   14 
Consolidated Total ...........................................................   187   88   133   85 
Unconsolidated Entities....................................................   —   —   1   1 
Total .................................................................................   187   $ 88   134   $ 86 
 
We expect all units of our backlog to close in 2010, subject to future cancellations. The cancellation rates for 2009 
and 2008 by reportable segment are as follows: 
 Years Ended December 31 
 2009  2008 
   Units   %   Units   % 

Northern California ...........................................................   19   12%   25    17% 
Southland / Los Angeles ...................................................   49   18%   45   16% 
San Diego / Riverside........................................................   30   16%   28   18% 
Washington D.C. Area ......................................................   62   19%   88   27% 
Corporate and Other..........................................................   20   250%   7   44% 
Total ..................................................................................   180    19%   193    21% 
 
The cancellation rate for 2009 in the Corporate and Other reportable segment results from deferral of the start of a 
project in Hawaii due to the market conditions in this location. 
 
Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2007  

Net Income 

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $133 million, a decrease of $142 million when compared to net 
income of $9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. The decrease in net income was due to continued 
challenging market conditions in all our markets which resulted in impairment charges and write-downs on our 
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housing and land assets, an 11% decrease in home closings and a reduction in our 2008 housing gross margin to 
13% compared to 17% in 2007. The decrease in net income was also due to an expense of $19 million related to our 
interest rate swaps in 2008 compared to an expense of $8 million in 2007. 

Results of Operations 

Company-wide: Housing revenue was $415 million in 2008, a decrease of $126 million when compared to 2007. 
The decrease in housing revenue was a result of 80 or 10% fewer homes closed from directly owned projects to 745 
units when compared to 2007 home closings. The gross margin on housing revenue in 2008 was $(43) million or 
(10%) compared with $4 million or 1% in 2007. The decrease in gross margin and gross margin percentage was due 
to fewer home closings, continued increases in homebuyer incentives and reduced prices and product mix.  

Land revenue in 2008 totaled $34 million on the sale of 616 lots compared with $42 million in 2007 on the sale of 
1,328 lots. The gross margin on land revenue was $(39) million, a decrease of $49 million when compared to 2007. 
Our land revenues may vary significantly from period to period due to the timing and nature of land sales, as they 
generally occur on an opportunistic basis and additionally such revenues are affected by local market conditions. 

In 2008, we recognized impairment and write-downs on our housing and land inventory of $115 million compared 
to $88 million in 2007. The impairment charges and write-downs related to 2,326 finished lots located in the Inland 
Empire of California and Washington D.C. Area and 819 optioned lots located in California and the Washington 
D.C. Area. 

A summary of our gross margin is as follows: 
 Years Ended December 31 
($ millions) 2008   2007 
Housing ...............................................................................................................................   $ 52   $ 92 
Land ....................................................................................................................................  (19)  10 
Impairment charges / write-downs......................................................................................  (115)  (88) 
  $ (82)   $ 14 
 
Northern California: Housing revenue was $127 million in 2008, an increase of $6 million when compared to 2007. 
The increase in revenue was primarily due to an increase of eight homes closed. The gross margin on housing 
revenue was $(11) million or (9%) in 2008, compared with $12 million or 10% in 2007.  

Land revenue was $2 million in 2008, compared with nil in 2007. The land revenue in 2008 comprised the sale of 78 
raw lots. The gross margin on land revenue was $(7) million. Impairment and other charges totaled $21 million in 
2008, compared with $15 million in 2007. 

Southland / Los Angeles: Housing revenue was $94 million in 2008, a decrease of $82 million when compared to 
2007. The decrease was due to a 39% decrease in our average selling price to $413,000 and 31 fewer homes closed. 
The gross margin on housing revenue was $(3) million or (4%) compared with $27 million or 16% in 2007. The 
decrease in the gross margin percentage was a result of reduced selling prices, increases in homebuyer incentives 
and product mix. 

Land revenue was nil in 2008, a decrease of $30 million when compared to 2007. The land revenue in 2007 
comprised the sale of 1,249 lots held under option. Impairment and other charges totaled $15 million in 2008, 
compared with $3 million in 2007. 

San Diego / Riverside: Housing revenue was $68 million in 2008, a decrease of $21 million when compared to 2007. 
The decrease was primarily due to 22 fewer homes closed and a decrease in our average selling price. The gross 
margin on housing revenue was $(5) million or (6%) compared with $(10) million or (11%) in 2007. The increase in 
the gross margin percentage was a result of a decrease in impairment charges, partially offset by reduced selling 
prices, increases in homebuyer incentives and product mix.  

Land revenue was $19 million in 2008, compared with nil in 2007. The land revenue in 2008 comprised the sale of 
451 finished lots. The gross margin in land revenues was $(35) million. Impairment and other charges totaled  
$43 million in 2008, compared with $33 million in 2007. 

Washington D.C. Area: Housing revenue was $122 million in 2008, a decrease of $21 million when compared to 
2007. The decrease was primarily due to 27 fewer homes closed. The gross margin on housing revenue was  
$(20) million or (16%) compared with $(28) million or (19%) in 2007. 
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Land revenue was $13 million in 2008, compared to $12 million in 2007. The gross margin on land revenue was  
$3 million in 2008 compared with $2 million in 2007. Impairment and other charges totaled $36 million in 2008, 
compared with $47 million in 2007. 

Other Income and Expenses 

Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities in 2008 totaled $3 million, a decrease of $10 million when 
compared to 2007. This decrease was primarily a result of a decrease in earnings from our Windemere 
unconsolidated entity of $8 million. Impairments from unconsolidated entities totaled $38 million in 2008 compared 
to $15 million in 2007. The impairment charges in 2008 related to 907 lots in Riverside. 

Other expense in 2008 totaled $18 million, an increase of $12 million when compared to 2007. The components of 
the 2008 and 2007 other (expense) / income are summarized as follows: 
 

Years Ended December 31 
($ millions) 2008   2007 
Change in fair value of interest rate swap contracts...............................................................   $ (19)   $ (8) 
Interest income.......................................................................................................................  ―  1 
Other ......................................................................................................................................  1  1 

 $ (18)   $ (6) 
 
Selling, general and administrative expense was $69 million in 2008, consistent with 2007. The components of the 
2008 and 2007 expense are summarized as follows: 
 
 Years Ended December 31 
($ millions) 2008   2007 
Selling, general and administrative expenses ........................................................................   $ (65)   $ (68) 
Stock compensation...............................................................................................................  7  18 
Changes in fair value of equity swap contract .......................................................................  (11)  (19) 
Total ......................................................................................................................................   $ (69)   $ (69) 
 
Sales Activity 

Our net new home orders for the year ended December 31, 2008 were 729 units, a decrease of six units compared to 
2007. Based on our average of 33 active selling communities, our average sales rate during 2008 was approximately 
0.4 sales per week per community, consistent with 2007, but below what may be considered a normal housing 
market of one sale per week per active selling community. The net new home orders in units for 2008 and 2007 by 
reportable segment are as follows: 
 
 Years Ended December 31 
 2008   2007 
Northern California ..............................................................................................................   122    141 
Southland / Los Angeles ...................................................................................................... 237  183 
San Diego / Riverside........................................................................................................... 128  123 
Washington D.C. Area ......................................................................................................... 233  249 
Corporate and Other............................................................................................................. 7  13 
Consolidated Total ............................................................................................................... 727  709 
Unconsolidated Entities........................................................................................................ 2  26 
Total .....................................................................................................................................   729    735 
 
Net new orders for any period represent the aggregate of all homes ordered by customers, net of cancellations. 
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Our backlog, which represents the number of new homes subject to pending sales contracts, at December 31, 2008 
and 2007 by reportable segment are as follows: 
 Backlog December 31 
 2008  2007 
  Units   $ millions   Units   $ millions 
Northern California..........................................    10   $ 9    27   $ 29 
Southland / Los Angeles ..................................   55   23   45   24 
San Diego / Riverside ......................................   8   4   8   4 
Washington D.C. Area.....................................   40   35   52   43 
Corporate and Other ........................................   20   14   19   15 
Consolidated Total...........................................   133   85   151   115 
Unconsolidated Entities ...................................   1   1   4   4 
Total.................................................................    134   $ 86    155   $ 119 

Our backlog is subject to future cancellations. The cancellation rates for 2008 and 2007 by reportable segment are as 
follows: 

 Years Ended December 31 
 2008  2007 
  Units   %   Units   % 
Northern California .........................................    25    17%    31    18% 
Southland / Los Angeles .................................   45   16%   140   41% 
San Diego / Riverside......................................   28   18%   30   19% 
Washington D.C. Area ....................................   88   27%   134   33% 
Corporate and Other........................................   7   44%   7   44% 
Total ................................................................    193    21%    342    31% 
 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Financial Position 
Our assets as of December 31, 2009 totaled $1,037 million compared to $1,207 million as of December 31, 2008, a 
decrease of $170 million. The decrease in 2009 was due primarily to decreases in housing and land inventory, our 
investment in unconsolidated entities and in our current tax receivables, partially offset by an increase in our 
consolidated land inventory not owned. Our housing and land inventory, investments in unconsolidated entities and 
our consolidated land inventory not owned are our most significant assets with a combined book value of  
$928 million or approximately 89% of our total assets. Our housing and land assets decreased by a combined  
$127 million in 2009 when compared to 2008. When impairments and other write-downs of $24 million are 
excluded, the decrease was $103 million. This decrease during 2009 was primarily a result of lower inventories with 
our focus on closing homes and reducing standing inventory, the disposition and sales of both finished and raw lots, 
impairments and write-offs of option deposits of $24 million, partially offset by the acquisition of 3,212 lots for  
$29 million in San Diego / Riverside.  
Our total debt as of December 31, 2009 was $382 million, a decrease of $367 million from December 31, 2008. 
Total debt as of December 31, 2009 consisted of $232 million of project specific financings and $150 million related 
to amounts drawn on two facilities with subsidiaries of our largest stockholder, Brookfield Asset Management Inc. 
Our project specific financings represent construction and development loans which are used to fund the 
development of our communities.  
As new homes are constructed, further loan facilities are arranged. Our major project specific lenders are Wells 
Fargo, Bank of America, Housing Capital Corporation and M&T Bank. Interest charged under project specific 
financings include LIBOR and prime rate pricing options. As of December 31, 2009, the average interest rate on our 
project specific debt was 4.2%, with stated maturities as follows:  
 Maturities 
($ millions)  2010   2011   2012   Total

Northern California...................................................................................   $ 1   $ 30   $ —   $ 31
Southland / Los Angeles ...........................................................................   30   8   —   38
San Diego / Riverside ...............................................................................   76   5   9   90
Washington D.C. Area ..............................................................................   25   37   —   62
Corporate and Other..................................................................................   11   —   —   11
Total..........................................................................................................   $ 143   $ 80   $ 9   $ 232
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Our debt maturing in 2010 and 2011 is expected to be repaid from home and/or lot deliveries over this period or 
extended and is secured by the housing and land inventory we own. During the year, proceeds from the housing and 
land deliveries exceeded the corresponding debt repayments made during the year. During the year ended December 
31, 2009, in the normal course of operations, we extended repayment terms on $27 million of debt originally 
maturing in 2009 and now maturing in 2010. Additionally, as of December 31, 2009, we had project specific debt of 
$203 million that is available to complete land development and construction activities. The “Cash Flow” section 
below discloses our future available capital resources should proceeds from our future home closings not be 
sufficient to repay our debt obligations. 

Other revolving financings includes $100 million on an unsecured revolving operating credit facility and  
$50 million on an unsecured revolving acquisition and operating credit facility, both with subsidiaries of our largest 
stockholder, Brookfield Asset Management Inc. The revolving operating credit facility matures in December 2011, 
bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.50% and was fully drawn upon as of December 31, 2009. During July 2009, the 
revolving acquisition and operating credit facility was amended to increase the maximum available amount to  
$100 million and provide for an initial commitment amount of $50 million. This facility matures in December 2012 
and initially bears interest at 12% and both of these facilities could be fully drawn upon without violation of any of 
our covenants. In October 2009, the initial commitment amount was increased to $80 million of which $50 million 
is available for general corporate purposes.  

Stockholders of our Company fully subscribed for 10,000,000 shares of 8% convertible preferred stock pursuant to 
our rights offering that expired on April 27, 2009. We received gross proceeds of approximately $250 million upon 
issuance of the shares of convertible preferred stock. The proceeds from the rights offering were used for general 
corporate purposes, including repayment on our revolving operating credit facility due to a subsidiary of our largest 
stockholder, Brookfield Asset Management Inc. Assuming the full conversion of the 8% convertible preferred stock 
held by it, Brookfield Asset Management Inc. will own approximately 82.4% of our common stock. Holders of the 
8% convertible preferred stock issued in the rights offering are entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by our 
Board of Directors, dividends per year at the per share rate of 8%, representing annual dividends of $20 million. 
These declared dividends are payable semi-annually and may be paid, at the election of our board of directors, in 
cash or shares of common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2009, we paid a prorated cash dividend of  
$4 million on June 30, 2009 and a $10 million dividend on December 31, 2009 paid in the form of common stock. 
Please see Note 12 to our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K for additional information on 
the rights offering. 

Cash Flow 

Our principal uses of working capital include home construction, purchases of land and land development. Cash 
flows for each of our communities depend upon the applicable stage of the development cycle and can differ 
substantially from reported earnings. Early stages of development require significant cash outlays for land 
acquisitions, site approvals and entitlements, construction of model homes, roads, certain utilities and other 
amenities and general landscaping. Because these costs are capitalized, earnings reported for financial statement 
purposes during such early stages may significantly exceed cash flows. Later, cash flows can exceed earnings 
reported for financial statement purposes, as cost of sales include charges for substantial amounts of previously 
expended costs.  
We believe we currently have sufficient access to capital resources and will continue to use our available capital 
resources to fund our existing business plan. Our future capital resources include cash flow from operations, 
borrowings under project and other credit facilities and proceeds from potential future equity offerings, if required. 
While we do not anticipate that an equilibrium between the supply and demand for housing will be reached in 2010, 
we continue to work through the challenging market conditions and remain focused on proactively managing our 
balance sheet, placing a strong emphasis on liquidity. We are continuing to manage our inventory levels through 
matching homebuilding starts with net new orders.  
Cash provided by our operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2009 totaled $137 million compared 
with $66 million for the same period in 2008. During the year ended December 31, 2009, our operating cash flow 
was positively impacted by the receipt of cash tax refunds of $63 million, and the net reduction of our housing and 
land inventory, offset by a reduction in accounts payable and other liabilities. 
During the year ended December 31, 2009, 703 homes and 469 lots to other homebuilders, respectively, were 
delivered. As a result, cash flow from operations was positively affected by these home closings and lot sales. These 
deliveries were partially offset by land acquisitions made during the year ended December 31, 2009. We have 
limited our development of land while the demand for finished lots has decreased. 
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A summary of our lots owned and consolidated land inventory not owned and their stage of development at 
December 31, 2009 compared with the same period last year follows: 

  2009   2008 
Completed homes, including models ...........................................................................................  101   265 
Homes under construction ...........................................................................................................  121   64 
Homes with foundation / slabs.....................................................................................................  85   76 
Total housing units ......................................................................................................................  307   405 
Lots ready for house construction................................................................................................  1,643   2,544 
  1,950   2,949 
Graded lots and lots commenced grading ....................................................................................  2,141   900 
Undeveloped land ........................................................................................................................  11,888   9,235 
  15,979   13,084 

Cash used in our investing activities in unconsolidated entities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was  
$9 million, a decrease of $23 million when compared with $32 million for the same period in 2008. The decrease 
was primarily a result of the curtailment of land development and acquisition expenditures, partially offset by an 
increase in restricted cash in conjunction with entering into the total return swap contract in the current year. 

Cash used in our financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $128 million compared with cash 
used of $43 million for the same period in 2008. The cash used in the current year was used to repay both project 
specific financings of $184 million as well as revolving and other financings of $192 million and pay cash dividends 
of $4 million on our 8% convertible preferred stock, which was partially offset by $250 million of proceeds received 
as a result of the 8% convertible preferred stock issuance. 
 
Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments 

A total of $223 million of our project specific financings mature prior to the end of 2011. The debt maturing in 2010 
and 2011 is expected to be repaid from home and/or lot deliveries over this period and is secured by the housing and 
land inventory we own. Our net debt to total capitalization ratio as of December 31, 2009, which we define as total 
interest-bearing debt less cash divided by total interest-bearing debt less cash plus total equity and other interests in 
consolidated subsidiaries, was 42%. The issuance of our 8% convertible preferred stock as well as the repayment of 
debt during the year resulted in a 40% improvement since December 31, 2008 in our net debt to total capitalization 
ratio. For a description of the specific risks facing us if, for any reason, we are unable to meet these obligations, refer 
to the section of this Form 10-K entitled “Risk Factors – Our debt and leverage could adversely affect our financial 
condition.” 

Our project specific financings require Brookfield Homes Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of our 
company, to maintain a tangible net worth of at least $250 million, a net debt to capitalization ratio of no greater 
than 65% and a net debt to tangible net worth ratio of no greater than 2.50 to 1.00. At December 31, 2009, we were 
in compliance with all our project specific financing covenants. The following are computations of the most 
restrictive of Brookfield Homes Holdings Inc.’s tangible net worth, net debt to capitalization ratio, and net debt to 
tangible net worth debt ratio covenants: 
    Actual as of  
  Covenant   December 31, 2009 

Tangible net worth ($US millions)......................................................................  $ 250   $ 518 
Net debt to capitalization.....................................................................................  65%   49% 
Net debt to tangible net worth .............................................................................  2.50 to 1   0.89 to 1 
 
At December 31, 2009, our revolving operating credit facility with a subsidiary of Brookfield Asset Management 
Inc. required us to maintain minimum stockholders’ equity of $300 million and a consolidated net debt to book 
capitalization ratio of no greater than 70%. The following are computations of Brookfield Homes Corporation’s 
minimum stockholders’ equity and net debt to capitalization ratio covenants: 
    Actual as of  
  Covenant   December  31, 2009 

Minimum stockholders’ equity ($US millions) ...................................................  $ 300   $ 486 
Net debt to capitalization.....................................................................................  70%    42% 
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A summary of our contractual obligations and purchase agreements as of December 31, 2009 follows: 
 Payment Due by Period 
  Less than   1-3   3-5   More than 

($ millions)  Total  1 Year   Years   Years   5 Years 
Project specific and revolving and 
 other financings (a) ............................  

 
 $ 382 

  
 $ 143 

  
 $ 239 

  
 $ — 

  
 $ — 

Operating lease obligations (b) ..............   7  2   4   1   — 
Purchase agreements (c) ........................   183  27   21   135   — 
Total (d) .................................................   $ 572  $ 172   $ 264   $ 136   $ — 

(a) Amounts are included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 6 and Note 7 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 included in this Form 10-K for additional information regarding project specific and other financings and related matters. 

(b) Amounts relate to non-cancelable operating leases involving office space, design centers and model homes. 

(c) Amounts represent our expected acquisition of land under options or purchase agreements. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial 
 Statements included in this Form 10-K for additional information regarding purchase agreements. 
(d) Amounts do not include interest due to the floating nature of our debt. See Note 6 and Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 included in this From 10-K for additional information regarding our floating rate debt. 
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
In the ordinary course of business, we use lot option contracts and unconsolidated entities to acquire control of land 
to mitigate the risk of declining land values. Option contracts for the purchase of land permit us to control the land 
for an extended period of time, until options expire and/or we are ready to develop the land for home construction. 
This reduces our financial risk associated with land holdings. As of December 31, 2009, we had $66 million of 
primarily non-refundable option deposits and advanced costs. The total exercise price of these options was  
$183 million. Pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 860 (formerly FIN 46(R)), as defined 
elsewhere in this Form 10-K, we have consolidated $25 million of these option contracts. Please see Note 2 to our 
consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K for additional information on our lot options. 

We also own 1,746 lots through our proportionate share of unconsolidated entities. As of December 31, 2009, our 
investment in unconsolidated entities totaled $92 million. We have provided varying levels of guarantees of debt in 
our unconsolidated entities. As of December 31, 2009, we had completion guarantees of $8 million and limited 
maintenance guarantees of $15 million with respect to debt in our unconsolidated entities. During 2009, we did not 
make any loan re-margin repayments on our debt in our unconsolidated entities. 

We obtain letters of credit, performance bonds and other bonds to support our obligations with respect to the 
development of our projects. The amount of these obligations outstanding at any time varies in accordance with our 
development activities. If these letters of credit or bonds are drawn upon, we will be obligated to reimburse the 
issuer of the letter of credit or bonds. As of December 31, 2009, we had $8 million in letters of credit outstanding 
and $121 million in performance bonds for these purposes. The costs to complete related to our letters of credit and 
performance bonds are $6 million and $70 million, respectively. We do not believe that any of these letters of credit 
or bonds are likely to be drawn upon.  
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates  

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon the consolidated 
financial statements of our Company, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make assumptions, 
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the related 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates on an on-going basis. We base our 
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and 
liabilities and the reported amount of revenues and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Our 
actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.  
Our most critical accounting policies are those that we believe are the most important in portraying our financial 
condition and results of operations, and require the most subjectivity and estimates by our management. A summary 
of our significant accounting policies, including the critical accounting policies discussed below, is provided in the 
notes to the consolidated financial statements of our Company included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.  
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Carrying Values 
In accordance with the ASC Topic 360 “Property, Plant and Equipment” (formerly Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) 144), housing and land assets we own directly and through unconsolidated entities 
are reviewed for recoverability on a regular basis and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability is measured by comparing the carrying amount 
of an asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. To arrive at the estimated fair 
value of housing and land inventory impaired, we estimate the cash flow for the life of each project. Specifically, on 
a housing project, we evaluate the margins on homes that have been closed, margins on sales contracts which are in 
backlog and estimated margins with regard to future home sales over the life of the project. On a land project, we 
estimate the timing of future land sales, the estimated revenue per lot, as well as estimated margins with respect to 
future land sales. For the housing and land inventory, we continuously evaluate projects where inventory is turning 
over slower than expected or whose average sales price and margins are declining and are expected to continue to 
decline. These projections take into account the specific business plans for each project and management’s best 
estimate of the most probable set of economic conditions anticipated to prevail in the market area. Such projections 
generally assume current home selling prices, cost estimates and sales rates for short-term projects are consistent 
with recent sales activity. For longer-term projects, planned sales rates for 2010 and 2011 assume recent sales 
activity and normalized sales rates beyond 2011. We identify potentially impaired housing and land projects based 
on these quantitative factors as well as qualitative factors obtained from the local market areas. If the future 
undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered to be impaired and is then written 
down to fair value less estimated selling costs using a discounted cash flow methodology which incorporates market 
participant assumptions. 

We have also entered into a number of option contracts to acquire land or lots in the future in accordance with 
specific terms and conditions. A majority of the option contracts require a non-refundable cash deposit based on a 
percentage of the purchase price of the property. The option contracts are recorded at cost. In determining whether 
to pursue an option contract, we estimate the option primarily based upon the expected cash flows from the optioned 
property. If the intent is to no longer pursue an option contract, we record a charge to earnings of the deposit 
amounts and any other related pre-acquisition entitlement costs in the period the decision is made. 

Capitalized Costs 

Our housing and land inventory on our consolidated balance sheet includes the costs of acquiring land, development  
and construction costs, interest, property taxes and overhead directly related to the development of the land and 
housing. Direct costs are capitalized to individual homes and lots and other costs are allocated to each lot in 
proportion to our anticipated revenue.  

Estimates of costs to complete homes and lots sold are recorded at the time of closing. These estimates are prepared 
on an individual home and lot basis and take into account the specific cost components of each individual home and 
lot. The estimation process to allocate costs to homes and lots is dependent on project budgets that are based on 
various assumptions, including construction schedules and future costs to be incurred. These estimates are reviewed 
for accuracy based on actual payments made after closing and adjustments are made if necessary. If the estimates of 
costs are significantly different from our actual results, our housing and land inventory may be over-or under-stated 
on our balance sheet, and accordingly gross margins in a particular period may be over-or under-stated.   
 
Revenue Recognition 

Revenues from the sale of homes are recognized when title passes to the purchaser upon closing, wherein all 
proceeds are received or collectability is evident. Land sales are recognized when title passes to the purchaser upon 
closing, all material conditions of the sales contract have been met and a significant cash down payment or 
appropriate security is received, and collectability is evident.  
 
Income Taxes 

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 740 “Income Taxes” (formerly SFAS 109). Under 
ASC Topic 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting 
and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured by using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which those differences are expected to reverse.  

In accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 740, we assess, on a quarterly basis, our ability to realize our 
deferred tax assets. In determining the need for a valuation allowance, we consider the following significant factors: 
an assessment of recent years’ profitability and losses which considers the nature, frequency and severity of current 
and cumulative losses adjusted to reflect the effects of changes to our capital structure that have resulted in a 



 

 
31

significant reduction in the amount of interest bearing debt; our forecasts or expectation of profits based on margins 
and volumes expected to be realized (which are based on current pricing and volume trends) and including the 
effects of reduced interest expense; the financial support of our largest stockholder as evidenced by the revolving 
credit facilities, the long duration of ten to twenty years or more in all significant operating jurisdictions before the 
expiry of net operating losses, and we take into consideration that a substantial portion of the deferred tax asset is 
composed of deductible temporary differences that are not subject to an expiry period until realized under tax law. 
However, the recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon assumptions about the future including an estimate of 
future results, and differences between the expected and actual financial performance could require all or a portion 
of the deferred tax assets to be derecognized. We will continue to evaluate the need for a valuation allowance in 
future periods. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, our deferred tax asset was $40 million and $59 million, 
respectively. Based on the more likely than not standard in the guidance and the weight of available evidence, we do 
not believe a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset at December 31, 2009 is necessary.  
 
Recent Accounting  
 
In July 2009, the FASB’s ASC became the single official source of authoritative, nongovernmental generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States.  The historical GAAP hierarchy was eliminated and the 
ASC became the only level of authoritative GAAP, other than guidance issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. This guidance is effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. We 
adopted the provisions of this guidance for the year ended December 31, 2009. Our accounting policies were not 
affected by the conversion to the ASC. However, references to specific accounting standards have been changed to 
refer to the appropriate section of the ASC. 
 
In December 2007, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” (formerly 
SFAS 160). The guidance clarifies the accounting for noncontrolling interests and establishes accounting and 
reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary, including classification as a component of total 
equity. This guidance was effective for our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2009. We have adopted this guidance in 
our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009. On a retrospective basis, 
noncontrolling interest has been classified as a component of equity and the net loss on the consolidated statements 
of operations has been adjusted to include the net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest. See Note 11 for further 
disclosure regarding its impact on our consolidated financial statements. 
 
In March 2008, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 815 “Derivatives and Hedging” 
(formerly SFAS 161). The guidance is intended to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and 
hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclosures that enable investors to better understand how and why an 
entity uses derivative instruments and the instruments’ effects on an entity’s financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows. The guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim 
periods beginning after November 15, 2008 with early application encouraged. This pronouncement is related to 
disclosure and did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. 
 
In December 2008, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 860 “Transfers and Servicing” 
(formerly FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) SFAS 140-4 and FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) 46R). The guidance increases 
disclosure requirements for public companies and is effective for reporting periods (interim and annual) that end 
after December 15, 2008. The guidance requires public entities to provide additional disclosures about transferors’ 
continuing involvements with transferred financial assets. It also requires public enterprises, including sponsors that 
have a variable interest in a variable interest entity, to provide additional disclosures about their involvement with 
variable interest entities. This pronouncement is related to disclosure only and did not have a material impact on our 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 825 “Financial Instruments” (formerly 
FSP SFAS 107-1). The guidance requires that the fair value disclosures required for financial instruments be 
included in interim financial statements. In addition, the guidance requires public companies to disclose the method 
and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of those financial instruments and to discuss any changes 
of method or assumptions, if any, during the reporting period. The guidance was effective for our year ended 
December 31, 2009. This pronouncement is related to disclosure only and did not have a material impact on our 
consolidated financial statements. 
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In May 2009, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 855 “Subsequent Events” (formerly SFAS 
165).  This guidance establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the 
balance sheet date but before the consolidated financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. Among 
other items, the guidance requires the disclosure of the date through which an entity has evaluated subsequent events 
and the basis for that date. We have adopted this guidance in its consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2009.  
 
In June 2009, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated into ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” (formerly SFAS 
167)  amending the consolidation guidance applicable to variable interest entities and the definition of a variable 
interest entity, and requiring enhanced disclosures to provide more information about a company’s involvement in a 
variable interest entity. This guidance also requires ongoing assessments of whether an enterprise is the primary 
beneficiary of a variable interest entity. This guidance is effective for our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2010. We 
are currently reviewing the impact of the guidance on our consolidated financial statements.  
 
Seasonality and Quarterly Information 

We have historically experienced variability in results of operations from quarter to quarter due to the seasonal 
nature of the homebuilding business and the timing of new community openings and the closing out of projects. We 
typically experience the highest rate of orders for new homes in the first six months of the calendar year. New home 
deliveries trail new home orders by several months, therefore we normally have a greater percentage of new home 
deliveries in the second half of our fiscal year. As a result, our revenues from deliveries of homes are generally 
higher in the second half of the year.  
 
The following table presents a summary of our operating results for each of the last eight quarters:  
 

 December 31  September 30  June 30  March 31 
($ millions, except home closings  
and per share amounts)  

 
 2009 

  
 2008 

  
 2009 

  
 2008 

  
 2009

  
 2008 

  
 2009

  
 2008 

Total revenue ...................................   $ 145 $  150  $    99  $  110  $    95 $  120  $    37  $ 69 
Gross margin / (loss)........................  (12) (65) 5 (19)  5  (2)  ― 4 
Net (loss) / income...........................  (17) (79) (4) (29)  ―  (11)  (12) (14)
Net loss attributable to Brookfield  
 Homes Corporation ......................  

 
(17) 

 
(70)

 
(1)

 
(25)

 
 ― 

 
 (9) 

 
(10)

 
(12)

Diluted (loss) / earnings per share (1)  (0.81) (2.58) (0.22) (0.95)  (0.12)  (0.33)  (0.39) (0.47)
Home closings (units) (2) ..................  268 230 192 184  169 216  74 120 
Cash provided by / ( used in) 
 operating activities.......................  

 
68 

 
37 

 
28 

 
12 

 
 16 

 
49 

 
25

 
(32)

Total assets ......................................  1,037 1,207 1,130 1,320  1,141 1,354  1,157 1,394 
Total debt.........................................  382 749 471 783  490 792  725 798 

(1) Quarterly and year-to-date computations of per share amounts are made independently. Therefore, the sum of per share amounts for the 
quarters may not agree with per share amounts for the year. 

(2) Includes unconsolidated entities. 
 
Non-Arms’ Length Transactions 

We are party to a license agreement with Brookfield Properties (US) Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Brookfield Properties Corporation, for the right to use the names “Brookfield” and “Brookfield Homes.” A 
subsidiary of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. has provided us with an unsecured revolving operating facility in 
the form of a promissory note that was amended most recently in April 2009. The facility bears interest at LIBOR 
plus 3.5% per annum, matures December 2011 and, at December 31, 2009, there was $100 million outstanding 
under this facility. During 2009, we entered into a second unsecured credit facility that was amended most recently 
in July 2009. This operating and acquisition facility initially bears interest at 12% per annum, matures December 
2012 and, at December 31, 2009, there was $50 million outstanding under this facility. We entered into a 
management services agreement with an affiliate of Brookfield Asset Management Inc., effective February 2009. 
Pursuant to the agreement, we paid directly to the Brookfield Asset Management Inc. affiliate a quarterly service fee 
of $80,000 with respect to Craig Laurie’s employment by us as our Chief Financial Officer in 2009. For details of 
these arrangements and other non-arms’ length transactions refer to “Certain Relationships and Related 
Transactions, and Director Independence,” which is incorporated by reference into Item 13 of this Form 10-K from 
our definitive 2010 proxy statement, which will be filed with the SEC not later than April 30, 2010.  
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Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 
 
Exchange Rates 

We conduct business in U.S. dollars only, so we are not exposed to currency risks.  
 
Interest Rates 

We are exposed to financial risks that arise from the fluctuations in interest rates. Our interest-bearing assets and 
liabilities are mainly at floating rates, so we would be negatively affected, on balance, if interest rates increase. In 
addition, we have interest rate swap contracts which effectively fix $200 million of our variable rate debt at an 
average rate of 7%. Based on our net debt levels as of December 31, 2009, a 1% change up or down in interest rates 
would have either a negative or positive effect of approximately $1 million on our cash flows.  

Our interest rate swaps are not designated as hedges under ASC 815 (formerly SFAS 133), “Derivatives and 
Hedging.” We are exposed to market risk associated with changes in the fair values of the swaps, and such changes 
must be reflected in our consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2009, the fair value of the 
interest rate swaps totaled a liability of $14 million. 



 

 
34

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  
 
 

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 Page
  
Report of Independent Registered Chartered Accountants ................................................................................ 35
 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 ..................................................................... 36
 
Consolidated Statements of Operations  
 for each of the Three Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ....................................................... 37
 
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity  
 for each of the Three Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ....................................................... 38
 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  
 for each of the Three Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 ....................................................... 39
 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements...................................................................................................... 40
 



 

 
35

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Brookfield Homes Corporation 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Brookfield Homes Corporation and subsidiaries 
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations, equity, 
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Brookfield 
Homes Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria 
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 18, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
Independent Registered Chartered Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
Toronto, Canada 
February 18, 2010 
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BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION 
 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 

(all dollar amounts are in thousands of U.S. dollars) 
 
 

   As at December 31 
 Note  2009   2008 
     

Assets   
Housing and land inventory ............................................................................... 2   $ 809,829   $ 946,875 
Investments in unconsolidated entities............................................................... 3  92,477  105,261 
Consolidated land inventory not owned............................................................. 2  25,434  3,328 
Receivables and other assets .............................................................................. 4  61,744  92,333 
Restricted cash ................................................................................................... 5  7,485  — 
Deferred income taxes ....................................................................................... 9  40,112  59,438 

    $ 1,037,081   $ 1,207,235 
Liabilities and Equity     

Project specific financings ................................................................................. 6   $ 231,567   $ 433,580 
Revolving and other financings ......................................................................... 7  150,000  314,977 
Accounts payable and other liabilities................................................................ 8  122,190  146,320 
Total liabilities ...................................................................................................   503,757  894,877 
Other interests in consolidated subsidiaries ....................................................... 11  47,011  49,839 
      
Commitments, contingent liabilities and other................................................... 14  —  — 
Preferred stock – 10,000,000 shares authorized, 10,000,000 shares issued  
 (December 31, 2008 – 10,000,000 shares authorized, nil shares issued).......

 
12 

  
249,688 

  
— 

Common stock  – 200,000,000 authorized, 32,073,781 shares issued  
 (December 31, 2008  – 32,073,781 shares issued) .........................................

 
12   

321 
  

321 
Additional paid-in capital................................................................................... 12 142,106 141,286 
Treasury stock, at cost – 3,671,482 shares  
 (December 31, 2008 – 5,305,049 shares) .......................................................

 
12   

(166,113) 
  

(238,957) 
Retained earnings...............................................................................................  252,994 356,981 
Noncontrolling interest ...................................................................................... 11 7,317 2,888 
Total equity ........................................................................................................  486,313 262,519 

     $ 1,037,081   $ 1,207,235 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  
 

(all dollar amounts are in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts) 
 
 

   Years Ended December 31 
 Note   2009   2008   2007 

  
Revenue   

 Housing ..................................................................................  $ 339,625  $ 415,311   $ 541,432 
 Land........................................................................................ 36,355 33,692  41,922 
 375,980 449,003  583,354 
Direct Cost of Sales      
 Housing ..................................................................................  (294,493) (363,038)  (449,695) 
 Land........................................................................................  (59,308) (53,057)  (31,568) 
 Impairment of housing and land inventory and write-off of  
  option deposits ..................................................................

 
2 

 
(23,963)

 
(115,124) 

  
(87,630) 

 (1,784) (82,216)  14,461 
 Selling, general and administrative expense........................... (52,339) (69,498)  (69,819) 
 Equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities..................... 3 1,331 3,302  12,745 
 Impairment of investments in unconsolidated entities............ 3 (12,995) (37,863)  (15,029) 
 Other income / (expense)........................................................ 14(e) 13,191 (17,823)  (5,717) 
Loss Before Income Taxes ........................................................ (52,596) (204,098)  (63,359) 
 Income tax recovery ...............................................................  20,134 70,861  71,958 
Net (Loss) / Income....................................................................  (32,462) (133,237)  8,599 
Less net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest  
 and other interests in consolidated subsidiaries ......................

 
11 

 
4,753 

 
17,622 

  
7,028 

Net (Loss) / Income attributable to Brookfield Homes  
 Corporation...........................................................................   

 $ (27,709)
  
 $ (115,615) 

  
 $ 15,627 

(Loss) / Earnings Per Share attributable to Brookfield  
 Homes Corporation Common Stockholders      

 Basic....................................................................................... 13  $ (1.54)  $ (4.33)   $ 0.59 
 Diluted.................................................................................... 13  $ (1.54)  $ (4.33)   $ 0.58 
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding (in thousands)    
 Basic....................................................................................... 13   26,838   26,688    26,627 
 Diluted.................................................................................... 13   26,838   26,688    26,851 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY 
 

(all dollar amounts are in thousands of U.S. dollars) 
 
 

   Years Ended December 31 
 Note  2009 2008  2007 

Preferred Stock   
 Opening balance......................................................................   $ ―   $ ―   $ ― 
 Preferred stock issuance, net of issuance costs of $312 .......... 12 249,688  ―  ― 
 Ending balance........................................................................  249,688  ―  ― 
       
Common Stock .........................................................................    321    321    321 
       
Additional Paid-in Capital       
 Opening balance......................................................................  141,286  145,101  146,730 
 Adjustment to stock-based compensation plan 10 145  ―  ― 
 Stock option compensation costs ............................................ 12 675  ―  ― 
 Stock option compensation exercises...................................... 12 ―  (3,815)  (1,629)
 Ending balance........................................................................  142,106  141,286  145,101 
       
Treasury Stock       
 Opening balance......................................................................  (238,957)  (243,701)  (248,606)
 Stock option exercises............................................................. 12 66  4,744  4,905 
 Preferred stock dividends........................................................ 12 72,778  ―  ― 
 Ending balance........................................................................  (166,113)  (238,957)  (243,701)
       
Retained Earnings       
 Opening balance......................................................................  356,981  477,929  472,961 
 Net (loss) / income attributable to Brookfield Homes 
  Corporation.........................................................................

  
(27,709)

  
(115,615) 

  
15,627 

 Common stock dividends........................................................ 12 ―  (5,333)  (10,659)
 Preferred stock dividends........................................................ 12 (13,500)  ―  ― 
 Treasury stock issued .............................................................. 12 (62,778)  ―  ― 
 Ending balance........................................................................  252,994  356,981  477,929 
 Total Brookfield Homes Corporation equity...........................   $ 478,996   $ 259,631   $ 379,650 
       
Noncontrolling Interest       
 Opening balance......................................................................   $ 2,888   $ 1,749   $ 1,749 
 Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest........................ 11   (437)    ―    ― 
 Contributions ..........................................................................    4,866    1,139    ― 
 Ending balance........................................................................   $ 7,317   $ 2,888   $ 1,749 
        
Total Equity...............................................................................   $ 486,313   $ 262,519   $ 381,399 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 

(all dollar amounts are in thousands of U.S. dollars) 
 

 Years Ended December 31 
 2009 2008 2007 

Cash Flows From / (Used in) Operating Activities  
 Net (loss) / income ......................................................................................  $ (32,462)  $ (133,237)   $ 8,599 
 Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) / income to net cash from operating 
  activities:     

  (Undistributed) / distributed  income from unconsolidated entities ...... (1,091) (1,902)  277 
  Deferred income taxes........................................................................... 19,326 (3,495)  (3,228) 
  Impairment of housing and land inventory and write-off of  
   option deposits .................................................................................

 
23,963 

 
115,124 

  
87,630 

  Impairment of investments in unconsolidated entities .......................... 12,995 37,863  15,029 
  Stock option compensation costs .......................................................... 675 —  — 
 Other changes in operating assets and liabilities:     
  Decrease / (increase) in receivables and other assets ............................ 27,439 (48,677)  (13,035) 
  Decrease in housing and land inventory................................................ 90,648 132,269  10,272 
  Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities ................................ (4,303) (31,539)  (149,820) 
Net cash provided by / (used in)  operating activities ...................................... 137,190 66,406  (44,276) 

     

Cash Flows From / (Used in) Investing Activities     
 Investments in unconsolidated entities........................................................ (11,222) (28,344)  (77,102) 
 Distribution from unconsolidated entities ................................................... 9,359 3,046  19,146 
 Restricted cash ............................................................................................ (7,485) —  — 
 Acquisition of additional interest in unconsolidated entities....................... — (6,844)  — 
Net cash used in investing activities................................................................. (9,348) (32,142)  (57,956) 
      
Cash Flows From / (Used in) Financing Activities     
 Net repayments under revolving project specific financing ......................... (184,013) (271,719)  (41,820) 
 Net (repayments) / borrowings under other revolving and other financings (192,220) 224,977  75,000 
 Distributions to noncontrolling interest and other interests in consolidated 
  subsidiaries............................................................................................

 
(1,122) 

 
(580) 

  
(5,675) 

 Contributions from noncontrolling interest and other interests in  
  consolidated subsidiaries.......................................................................

 
3,259 

 
9,130 

  
7,588 

 Exercise of stock options ............................................................................ 66 129  121 
 Preferred stock issuance.............................................................................. 250,000 —  — 
 Preferred stock issuance costs ..................................................................... (312) —  — 
 Preferred stock dividends............................................................................ (3,500) —  — 
 Common stock dividends paid in cash ........................................................ — (5,333)  (10,659) 
Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities ....................................... (127,842) (43,396)  24,555 
      

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents ............................................................. — (9,132)  (77,677) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............................................... — 9,132  86,809 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .........................................................  $ —  $ —   $ 9,132 
      
Supplemental Cash Flow Information     
 Interest paid.................................................................................................  $ 36,484  $ 57,754   $ 58,300 
 Income taxes recovered / (paid) ................................................................. 63,286 22,299  (22,154) 
 Non-cash (increase) / decrease in consolidated land inventory not owned . (22,106) 18,463  18,744 
      

Acquisitions of Unconsolidated Entities’ Assets and Liabilities     
 Increase in housing and land inventory .......................................................  $ 14,521  $ 97,828   $ 104,050 
 Reduction in investment in unconsolidated entities .................................... 9,604 33,960  2,429 
 Liabilities assumed...................................................................................... 51 63,868  101,621 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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Note 1.  Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Presentation 

Brookfield Homes Corporation (the “Company” or “Brookfield Homes”) was incorporated on August 28, 2002 in 
Delaware and thereafter acquired all the California and Washington D.C. area land development and homebuilding 
operations of Brookfield Properties Corporation. The Company began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on 
January 7, 2003, under the symbol “BHS.”  

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) and include the consolidated accounts of Brookfield 
Homes and its subsidiaries and investments in unconsolidated entities and variable interest entities in which the 
Company is the primary beneficiary.  
 
(b) Housing and Land Inventory 

 (i) Revenue recognition: Revenues from the sale of homes are recognized when title passes to the purchaser 
upon closing, wherein all proceeds are received or collectability is evident. Land sales are recognized when title 
passes to the purchaser upon closing, all material conditions of the sales contract have been met and a 
significant cash down payment or appropriate security is received and collectability is evident. 

 (ii) Carrying values: In accordance with the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 360 “Property, 
Plant and Equipment” (formerly Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 144), housing and land 
assets the Company owns directly and through unconsolidated entities are reviewed for recoverability on a 
regular basis and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset 
may not be recoverable. Recoverability is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future 
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. To arrive at the estimated fair value of housing 
and land inventory impaired, the Company estimates the cash flow for the life of each project. Specifically, on a 
housing project, the Company evaluates the margins on homes that have been closed, margins on sales contracts 
which are in backlog and estimated margins with regard to future home sales over the life of the project. On a 
land project, the Company estimates the timing of future land sales, the estimated revenue per lot, as well as 
estimated margins with respect to future land sales. For the housing and land inventory, the Company 
continuously evaluates projects where inventory is turning over more slowly than expected or whose average 
sales price and margins are declining and are expected to continue to decline. These projections take into 
account the specific business plans for each project and management’s best estimate of the most probable set of 
economic conditions anticipated to prevail in the market area. Such projections generally assume current home 
selling prices, cost estimates and sales rates for short-term projects are consistent with recent sales activity. For 
longer-term projects, planned sales rates for 2010 and 2011 assume recent sales activity and normalized sales 
rates beyond 2011. Management identifies potentially impaired housing and land projects based on these 
quantitative factors as well as qualitative factors obtained from the local market areas. If the future 
undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered to be impaired and is then 
written down to fair value less estimated selling costs using a discounted cash flow methodology which 
incorporates market participant assumptions. 

 The Company has also entered into a number of option contracts to acquire land or lots in the future in 
accordance with specific terms and conditions. The majority of the option contracts require a non-refundable 
cash deposit based on a percentage of the purchase price of the property. Option contracts are recorded at cost. 
In determining whether to pursue an option contract, the Company estimates the option primarily based upon 
the expected cash flows from the optioned property. If the intent is to no longer pursue an option contract, the 
Company records a charge to earnings of the deposit amounts and any other related pre-acquisition entitlement 
costs in the period the decision is made. 
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 (iii) Capitalized costs: Capitalized costs include the costs of acquiring land, development and construction 
costs, interest, property taxes and overhead related to the development of land and housing. Direct costs are 
capitalized to individual homes and lots and other costs are allocated to each lot in proportion to the Company’s 
anticipated revenue. 

 
(c) Unconsolidated Entities 

The Company participates in a number of unconsolidated entities in which it has less than a controlling interest to 
develop and sell land to the unconsolidated entity members and other third parties. These unconsolidated entities are 
accounted for using the equity method. The Company recognizes its proportionate share of the earnings from the 
sale of lots to other third parties. The Company does not recognize earnings from the purchase of lots from its 
unconsolidated entities and reduces its cost basis of the land purchased accordingly. 
 
(d) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.  
 
(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand 
deposits, and all highly liquid short-term investments with original maturity less than 90 days. 
 
(f) Restricted Cash 

Restricted cash includes cash held on deposit with a financial institution in the form of collateral, required by terms 
outlined in the total return swap transaction entered into during the year ended December 31, 2009. 
 
(g) Income Taxes 

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 740 “Income Taxes” (formerly SFAS 109). Under 
ASC Topic 740, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting 
and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and are measured by using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which those differences are expected to reverse.  

In accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 740, the Company assesses, on a quarterly basis, its ability to 
realize its deferred tax assets. In determining the need for a valuation allowance, the Company considers the 
following significant factors: an assessment of recent years’ profitability and losses, adjusted to reflect the effects of 
changes to its capital structure that have resulted in a significant reduction in the amount of interest bearing debt; its 
expectation of profits based on margins and volumes expected to be realized (which are based on current pricing and 
volume trends) and including the effects of reduced interest expense; the financial support of its largest stockholder 
as evidenced by the revolving credit facilities; the long period of ten years or more in all significant operating 
jurisdictions before the expiry of net operating losses; and that a substantial portion of the deferred tax asset is 
composed of deductible temporary differences that are not subject to an expiry period until realized under tax law. 
However, the recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon an estimate of future results and differences between 
the expected and actual financial performance could require all or a portion of the deferred tax assets to be 
derecognized. The Company will continue to evaluate the need for a valuation allowance in future periods. Based on 
the more likely than not standard in the guidance and the weight of available evidence, the Company does not 
believe a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset at December 31, 2009 is necessary. 
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Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”) Interpretation 48 (“FIN 48”), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB 
Statement No. 109,” as identified in ASC 740. There was no impact to the Company’s financial statements as a 
result of adopting this interpretation. ASC Topic 740 clarifies the accounts for uncertainty in income taxes 
recognized and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement affiliates for the financial statement recognition 
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. It requires that a company determine 
whether it is more-likely-than-not that a position will be sustained upon examination by taxation authorities, based 
upon the technical merits of the position. A tax position that meets the more-than-likely-not threshold is then 
measured to determine the amount of the tax benefit to recognize in the financial statements. At December 31, 2009 
and 2008, the Company did not have any unrecognized tax benefits / liabilities.  

The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits / liabilities in income 
tax recovery / expense. 
 
(h) Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company accounts for stock option grants and deferred share unit grants in accordance with ASC Topic 718 
“Compensation-Stock Compensation” (formerly SFAS 123(R)). All stock options granted have exercise prices equal 
to the market value of the stock on the date of the grant. Participants in the option plan can exercise their options to 
purchase shares at the exercise price. The option to elect to receive cash equal to the difference between the exercise 
price and the current market price was eliminated in the current year in conjunction with the modification of the 
Company’s stock option plan.  

Accordingly, the Company records the fair value of these options using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. 
These options have been recorded in additional paid-in capital in 2009 as a result of an amendment to existing stock 
option awards made under the 2002 stock option plan and the approval and adoption of the 2009 stock option plan. 
In prior years, these options were recorded in accounts payable and other liabilities. The Company records the 
deferred share units as a liability as disclosed in accounts payable and other liabilities. See Note 10 “Stock-Based 
Compensation” for further discussion. 
 
(i) Other Comprehensive Income 

The Company adheres to U.S. GAAP reporting requirements with respect to the presentation and disclosure of other 
comprehensive income; however, it has been determined by management that no material differences exist between 
net income and comprehensive income for each of the periods presented.  
 
(j) Earnings Per Share 

Earnings per share is computed in accordance with ASC Topic 260 “Earnings Per Share” (formerly SFAS 128). 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net loss attributable to Brookfield Homes Corporation less 
preferred share dividends by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the year. Diluted 
earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income less preferred share dividends by the average number of 
common shares outstanding including all dilutive potentially issuable shares under various stock option plans. 
 
(k) Advertising Costs 

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the 
Company incurred advertising costs of $7.0 million, $14.0 million and $11.9 million, respectively. 
 
(l) Warranty Costs 

Estimated future warranty costs are accrued and charged to cost of sales at the time the revenue associated with the 
sale of each home is recognized. Factors that affect the Company’s warranty liability include the number of homes 
sold, historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims, and cost per claim. Costs are accrued based upon historical 
experience. 
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(m) Variable Interest Entities 

The Company accounts for its variable interest entities (“VIEs”) in accordance with ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” 
(formerly FIN 46(R)). The decision whether to consolidate a VIE begins with establishing that a VIE exists. A VIE 
exists when either the total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities by 
itself, or the equity investor lacks one of three characteristics associated with owning a controlling financial interest. 
Those characteristics are the direct or indirect ability to make decisions about the entity’s activities through voting 
rights or similar rights, the obligation to absorb the expected losses of an entity, and the right to receive the expected 
residual returns. The entity with the majority of the expected losses or expected residual returns of the entity or both 
is considered to be the primary beneficiary of the entity and is required to consolidate such entity. The Company has 
determined it is the primary beneficiary of certain VIEs which are presented in these financial statements under 
“Consolidated land inventory not owned” with the interests of others included in accounts payable and other 
liabilities. See Notes 2 and 3 for further discussion on the consolidation of land option contracts and unconsolidated 
entities. 
 
(n) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities 
The Company accounts for its derivative and hedging activities in accordance with ASC Topic 815, “Derivatives 
and Hedging” (formerly SFAS 133 and SFAS 149 and related interpretations). ASC Topic 815 requires the 
Company to recognize all derivative instruments at their fair values as either assets or liabilities on its balance sheet. 
The accounting for changes in fair value (i.e. gains or losses) of a derivative instrument depends on whether the 
Company has designated it, and whether it qualifies, as part of a hedging relationship and on the type of hedging 
relationship. For those derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as hedging instruments, the Company 
must designate the hedging instrument, based upon the exposure being hedged, as a fair value hedge, a cash flow 
hedge or a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. The Company had no fair value hedges or hedges of a 
net investment in foreign operations as of December 31, 2009 or as of December 31, 2008. For derivative 
instruments that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge (i.e. hedging the exposure to variability in expected 
future cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk), the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative 
instrument is reported as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified into earnings in the same line 
item associated with the forecasted transaction in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction 
affects earnings (i.e. in ‘‘interest expense’’ when the hedged transactions are interest cash flows associated with 
floating-rate debt). The remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrument in excess of the cumulative changes in 
the present value of future cash flows of the hedged item, if any, is recognized in the realized and unrealized gain 
(loss) on derivatives in current earnings during the period of change. For derivative instruments not designated as 
hedging instruments, the gain or loss is recognized in realized and unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives in the current 
earnings during the period of change. Income and/or expense from interest rate swaps are recognized as an 
adjustment to interest expense. The Company accounts for income and expense from interest rate swaps over the 
period to which the payments and/or receipts relate. 
 
(o) Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
In July 2009, the FASB’s ASC became the single, official source of authoritative, non-governmental GAAP in the 
United States.  The historical GAAP hierarchy was eliminated and the ASC became the only level of authoritative 
GAAP, other than guidance issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). This guidance is 
effective for interim and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The Company adopted the provisions of 
this guidance for the year ended December 31, 2009. The Company’s accounting policies were not affected by the 
conversion to the ASC. However, references to specific accounting standards have been changed to refer to the 
appropriate section of the ASC. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” (formerly 
SFAS 160). The guidance clarifies the accounting for noncontrolling interests and establishes accounting and 
reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary, including classification as a component of 
stockholders’ equity. This guidance was effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning January 1, 2009. The 
Company has adopted this guidance in its consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009. 
See Note 11 for disclosure regarding its impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
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In March 2008, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 815 “Derivatives and Hedging” 
(formerly SFAS 161). The guidance is intended to improve financial reporting about derivative instruments and 
hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclosures to enable investors to better understand how and why an entity 
uses derivative instruments and the instruments’ effects on an entity’s financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows. The guidance is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning 
after November 15, 2008 with early application encouraged. This pronouncement is related to disclosure and did not 
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

In December 2008, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 860 “Transfers and Servicing” 
(formerly FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) SFAS 140-4 and FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) 46R). The guidance increases 
disclosure requirements for public companies and is effective for reporting periods (interim and annual) that end 
after December 15, 2008. The guidance requires public entities to provide additional disclosures about transferors’ 
continuing involvements with transferred financial assets. It also requires public enterprises, including sponsors that 
have a variable interest in a variable interest entity, to provide additional disclosures about their involvement with 
variable interest entities. This pronouncement is related to disclosure only and did not have a material impact on the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

In April 2009, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 825 “Financial Instruments” (formerly 
FSP SFAS 107-1). The guidance requires that the fair value disclosures required for financial instruments be 
included in interim financial statements. In addition, the guidance requires public companies to disclose the method 
and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of those financial instruments and to discuss any changes 
of method or assumptions, if any, during the reporting period. The guidance was effective for the Company’s year 
ended December 31, 2009. This pronouncement is related to disclosure only and did not have a material impact on 
the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

In May 2009, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 855 “Subsequent Events” (formerly SFAS 
165).  This guidance establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the 
balance sheet date but before the consolidated financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. Among 
other items, the guidance requires the disclosure of the date through which an entity has evaluated subsequent events 
and the basis for that date. The Company has adopted this guidance in its consolidated financial statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2009. See Note 17 for disclosure. 

In June 2009, the FASB issued guidance now incorporated in ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” (formerly SFAS 167) 
amending the consolidation guidance applicable to variable interest entities and the definition of a variable interest 
entity, and requiring enhanced disclosures to provide more information about a company’s involvement in a variable 
interest entity. This guidance also requires ongoing assessments of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary 
of a variable interest entity. This guidance is effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning January 1, 2010. The 
Company is currently reviewing the impact of the guidance on its consolidated financial statements. 
 
Note 2.  Housing and Land Inventory 
 
Housing and land inventory includes homes completed under construction and lots ready for construction, model 
homes and land under and held for development, which will be used in the Company’s homebuilding operations or 
sold as building lots to other homebuilders. The following summarizes the components of housing and land 
inventory:  

 December 31 
 2009  2008

Housing inventory .......................................................................................................................   $ 359,132   $ 440,394
Model homes ...............................................................................................................................  32,542  54,165
Land and land under development ...............................................................................................  418,155  452,316
  $ 809,829   $ 946,875
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The Company capitalizes interest which is expensed as housing units and building lots are sold. For the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, interest incurred and capitalized by the Company was $36.5 million,  
$57.8 million and $58.3 million, respectively. Capitalized interest expensed as direct cost of sales for the same 
periods was $24.0 million, $29.1 million and $34.3 million, respectively. 

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the challenging housing market conditions continued. Rising 
unemployment, increased foreclosures and more stringent credit standards continued to present challenges for the 
housing industry to generate increased sales. During 2009, the Company recognized $11.2 million of impairment 
charges related to housing and land inventory the Company directly owns (2008 – $97.4 million). The $11.2 million 
in impairment charges were on lots located in Southland / Los Angeles, Washington D.C. Area and Other reportable 
segments. See Note 16 for additional disclosure. 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into a number of option contracts to acquire land or lots 
in the future in accordance with specific terms and conditions. Under these option agreements, the Company will 
advance deposits to secure the right to purchase land or lots at a future point in time. The Company has evaluated its 
option contracts and determined that, for those entities considered to be VIEs, it is the primary beneficiary of options 
with an aggregate exercise price of $25.4 million (December 31, 2008 – $3.3 million) and which are required to be 
consolidated. In these cases, the only asset recorded is the Company’s exercise price for the option to purchase, with 
an increase in accounts payable and other liabilities of $25.4 million (2008 – $3.3 million) for the assumed third 
party investment in the VIE. Where the land sellers are not required to provide the Company financial information 
related to the VIE, certain assumptions by the Company were required in its assessment as to whether or not it is the 
primary beneficiary. 

Housing and land inventory includes non-refundable deposits and other entitlement costs totaling $42.6 million 
(December 31, 2008 – $59.3 million) in connection with options that are not required to be consolidated in terms of 
the guidance incorporated in ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” (formerly FIN 46R). The total exercise price of these 
options is $156.9 million (December 31, 2008 – $277.8 million) including the non-refundable deposits identified 
above. The number of lots which the Company has obtained an option to purchase, excluding those already 
consolidated and those held through unconsolidated entities and their respective dates of expiry and their exercise 
price follows: 

 
Year of Expiry 

Number  
of Lots 

 Total Exercise
Price

2010 ......................................................................................................................................... 196   $ 23,194 
2011 ......................................................................................................................................... 555   20,942 
Thereafter ................................................................................................................................. 5,528   112,764 

6,279   $ 156,900 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company wrote-off $1.4 million (December 31, 2008 –  
$17.7 million) primarily related to unentitled lot option agreements on various lots which the  CCompany is no longer 
pursuing. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2009, the company wrote-off  $3.2 million related to a 
refundable lot option deposit, previously included in accounts receivable and other assets. 

Investments in unconsolidated entities includes $27.0 million of the Company’s share of non-refundable deposits 
and other entitlement costs in connection with 1,987 lots under option. The Company’s share of the total exercise 
price of these options is $88.0 million. 

The Company holds agreements for a further 4,596 acres of longer term land, with non-refundable deposits and 
other entitlement costs of $7.0, million which is included in housing and land inventory that may provide additional 
lots upon obtaining entitlements with an aggregate exercise price of $36.0 million. However, given that the 
Company is in the initial stage of land entitlement, the Company has concluded at this time that the level of 
uncertainty in entitling these properties does not warrant including them in the above totals. During 2009, included 
in impairments of housing and land inventory and write-off of option deposits are write-offs of $7.7 million related 
to 500 acres of longer-term land which the Company is no longer pursuing. 
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Note 3.  Investments in Unconsolidated Entities 

The Company participates in a number of unconsolidated entities in which it has less than a controlling interest. 
Summarized condensed financial information on a combined 100% basis of the unconsolidated entities follows:  

 December 31 
Assets 2009  2008 

Housing and land inventory ....................................................................................................   $ 235,864   $ 310,026 
Other assets.............................................................................................................................  6,722  9,242 

  $ 242,586   $ 319,268 
Liabilities and Equity    

Project specific financings ......................................................................................................   $ 52,175   $ 62,583 
Accounts payable and other liabilities ....................................................................................  14,082  15,840 
Equity    

Brookfield Homes interest .................................................................................................  92,477  105,261 
Others’ interest...................................................................................................................  83,852  135,584 

  $ 242,586   $ 319,268 
Revenue and Expenses    

Revenue ..................................................................................................................................   $ 12,663   $ 21,547 
Cost of sales............................................................................................................................  (13,414)  (15,581)
Other expense .........................................................................................................................    (4,081)    (2,548)
Net (loss) / income..................................................................................................................   $ (4,832)   $ 3,418 

Company’s share of net income...................................................................................................   $ 1,331   $ 3,302 
Impairment of investments in unconsolidated entities .................................................................   $ (12,995)   $ (37,863)

 
In reporting the Company’s share of net income / (loss), all inter-company profits or losses from unconsolidated 
entities are eliminated on lots purchased by the Company from the unconsolidated entities. For the year ended 
December 31, 2009, the difference between the Company’s share of the loss of its investments in unconsolidated 
entities for the year ended December 31, 2009 and equity in earnings from unconsolidated entities primarily arises 
from differences in accounting policies followed by unconsolidated entities. 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2009, in accordance with ASC Topic 323 “Investments – Equity Method and 
Joint Ventures” (formerly Accounting Position Bulletin 18) and ASC Topic 360 “Property, Plant and Equipment” 
(formerly SFAS 144), the Company recognized impairment charges of $3.8 million related primarily to two 
unconsolidated entities in the Washington D.C. Area as a result of continued deterioration in these projects which 
resulted in the carrying value of the Company’s investment in these unconsolidated entities exceeding the estimated 
fair value. Also, during the year ended December 31, 2009, the lender foreclosed on a property related to an 
unconsolidated entity in the Inland Empire of California in the San Diego / Riverside reportable segment. The 
Company had provided the lender a several guarantee for 50% of the debt outstanding on the property and had 
previously accrued $18.0 million related to this several guarantee. As a result of the lender foreclosing on the 
property during the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company had accrued an additional $9.2 million related to 
this property, which has been reclassified from accounts payable and other liabilities to revolving and other 
financings as a result of loan repayment terms being finalized with the lender. The $9.2 million expense is included 
in impairments of investments in unconsolidated entities. At the foreclosure sale held later during the year ended 
December 31, 2009, the Company acquired the entire property for $17.1 million. 
 
As described in Note 1(c), unconsolidated entities in which the Company has a non-controlling interest are 
accounted for using the equity method. In addition, the Company has performed an evaluation of its existing 
unconsolidated entity relationships by applying the provisions of ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” (formerly SFAS 
160).  
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The Company and/or its unconsolidated entity partners have provided varying levels of guarantees of debt in its 
unconsolidated entities. At December 31, 2009, the Company had completion guarantees of $7.9 million (December 
31, 2008 – $10.5 million), limited maintenance guarantees of $15.3 million (December 31, 2008 – $12.1 million) 
and recourse guarantees of nil (December 31, 2008 – $35.8 million) with respect to debt in its unconsolidated 
entities.  
 
Note 4. Receivables and Other Assets 

The components of receivables and other assets included in the Company’s balance sheet are summarized as 
follows: 

 December 31 
 2009  2008

Taxes receivable...........................................................................................................................   $ 40,002   $ 64,292 
Proceeds and escrow receivables..................................................................................................  1,414  3,731 
Refundable deposits .....................................................................................................................  4,815  7,560 
Prepaid expenses ..........................................................................................................................  2,970  4,649 
Miscellaneous receivables............................................................................................................  7,686  8,231 
Other assets ..................................................................................................................................  4,857  3,870 

 $ 61,744   $ 92,333 
 

Note 5. Restricted Cash 

At December 31, 2009, the Company had restricted cash of $7.5 million (December 31, 2008 – nil). During the year 
ended December 31, 2009, the Company entered into a total return swap transaction (see Note 14(f)) which requires 
the Company to maintain cash deposits as collateral equivalent to 1,022,987 shares at $7.31 per share, the prevailing 
share price at the date of the transaction. 
 
Note 6.  Project Specific Financings  

Project specific financings of $231.6 million (2008 – $433.6 million) are revolving in nature, bear interest at floating 
rates with a weighted average rate of 4.2% as at December 31, 2009 (December 31, 2008 – 4.0%) and are secured by 
housing and land inventory. The weighted average rate was calculated as of the end of each period, based upon the 
amount of debt outstanding and the related interest rates applicable on that date. 

Project specific financings also includes nil (December 31, 2008 – $3.1 million) of mortgage finance loans. See 
Note 14(g) for further discussion.  

Interest rates charged under project specific financings include LIBOR and prime rate pricing options. The 
maximum amount of borrowings during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $433.6 million, 
$644.6 million and $644.6 million, respectively. The average borrowings during 2009, 2008 and 2007 were  
$348.0 million, $546.9 million and $610.6 million, respectively. 

Project specific financings mature as follows: 2010 – $143.9 million; 2011 – $78.8 million; and 2012 –  
$8.9 million.  

The Company’s project specific financings require Brookfield Homes Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
the Company, to maintain a tangible net worth of at least $250.0 million, a net debt to capitalization ratio of no 
greater than 65% and a net debt to tangible net worth of no greater than 2.50 to 1. As of December 31, 2009, the 
Company was in compliance with all its covenants. 
 



BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION 
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(Tabular amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars except share and per share amounts) 
 
 

 
48

Note 7.  Revolving and Other Financings 

Revolving and other financings of $150.0 million (December 31, 2008 – $315.0 million) consist of amounts drawn 
on two unsecured revolving credit facilities due to subsidiaries of the Company’s largest stockholder, Brookfield 
Asset Management Inc.  
During April 2009, the revolving operating facility was reduced to an amount not to exceed $100.0 million, the 
maturity was extended to December 2011, the interest rate was increased to LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum and the 
covenants for Brookfield Homes Corporation were amended to maintain a minimum stockholders’ equity of  
$300.0 million and a consolidated net debt to book capitalization ratio of no greater than 70%. At December 31, 
2009, this facility was fully drawn. During the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, interest of  
$6.1 million, $13.7 million and $15.0 million, respectively, was incurred related to this facility.  
The revolving acquisition and operating facility was entered into during February 2009, initially bearing interest at 
12% per annum and maturing in December 2012. This facility is available for the acquisition of housing and land 
assets and for operations. During July 2009, this facility was increased to an aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed $100.0 million and includes covenants which require Brookfield Homes Holdings Inc. to maintain a 
minimum stockholders’ equity of $300.0 million and a consolidated net debt to book capitalization ratio of no 
greater than 70%.  At December 31, 2009, $50.0 million had been drawn on this facility. During the year ended 
December 31, 2009, interest of $3.5 million was incurred related to this facility.  

As of December 31, 2009, the Company was in compliance with all its covenants in respect of these facilities. 
 
Note 8. Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 

The components of accounts payable and other liabilities included in the Company’s balance sheet are summarized 
as follows: 

 December 31 
 2009  2008

Trade payables and cost to complete accruals ..............................................................................   $ 37,518   $ 41,247 
Warranty costs (Note 14 (c)) ........................................................................................................  13,126  13,123 
Customer deposits ........................................................................................................................  3,357  1,347 
Stock-based compensation (Note 10) ...........................................................................................  5,878  5,328 
Loans from other interests in consolidated subsidiaries ...............................................................  17,118  16,469 
Accrued and deferred compensation ............................................................................................  3,268  15,454 
Swap contracts (Note 14 (e) and (f)) ............................................................................................  14,192  25,809 
Several guarantee  (Note 3) ..........................................................................................................  ―  18,000 
Consolidated land option contracts (Note 2) ................................................................................  25,434  3,328 
Other ............................................................................................................................................  2,299  6,215 

 $ 122,190   $ 146,320 
 
Note 9.  Income Taxes 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. The differences that 
give rise to the net deferred tax asset are as follows: 

 December 31 
 2009  2008 

Differences relating to housing and land inventory.......................................................................  $ 23,388   $ 38,761 
Compensation deductible for tax purposes when paid ..................................................................   2,641    6,055 
Differences related to derivative instruments ................................................................................   5,235  9,793 
Loss carry-forwards ......................................................................................................................   8,848  4,829 

 $ 40,112   $ 59,438 
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The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits / obligations in income 
tax (recovery) / expense. 

The Company has computed the tax provisions for the periods presented based upon accounting income, adjusted 
for expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes. The (recovery) / provision for income taxes for each of the 
three years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as follows: 
 December 31 
 2009 2008 2007 

Current ..........................................................................................................  $ (39,460)   $ (67,366)   $ (68,730)
Deferred ........................................................................................................   19,326 (3,495)  (3,228) 
Income tax recovery ......................................................................................  $ (20,134)  $ (70,861)   $ (71,958) 

A reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate and the effective rate follows: 
 December 31 
 2009 2008 2007 

Statutory federal rate .....................................................................................  35.0%  35.0%  35.0% 
State income tax ............................................................................................  3.0% 3.0%  1.0% 
Uncertain tax liability reversals.....................................................................   2.9%  —  91.4% 
Other .............................................................................................................  1.2%  —  0.3% 
Effective rate .................................................................................................  42.1% 38.0%  127.7% 
 
In accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 740, the Company assesses, at each reporting period, its ability to 
realize its deferred tax assets. In determining the need for a valuation allowance, the Company considered the 
following significant factors: an assessment of recent years’ profitability and losses, adjusted to reflect the effects of 
changes to the Company’s capital structure that have resulted in a significant reduction to the amount of interest-
bearing debt; the Company’s expectation of profits based on margins and volumes expected to be realized (which 
are based on current pricing and volume trends) and including the effects of reduced interest expense due to the 
reduction in the amount of interest-bearing debt; the financial support of the Company’s largest stockholder as 
evidenced by the credit facilities in place; the long period of 10 to 20 years or more in all significant operating 
jurisdictions before the expiry of net operating losses, noting further that a substantial portion of the deferred tax 
asset is composed of deductible temporary differences that are not subject to an expiry period until realized under 
tax law. The Company’s loss carry-forwards of $8.8 million expire between the years 2028 and 2029 based on the 
more likely than not standard in the guidance and the weight of available evidence, the Company does not believe a 
valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets is necessary and however, the recognition of deferred tax assets is 
based upon an estimate of future results and differences between the expected and actual financial performance of 
the Company could require all or a portion of the deferred tax assets to be expensed. The Company will continue to 
evaluate the need for a valuation allowance in future reporting periods. 

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company had not incurred any tax-related interest or penalties  
(2008 – nil). For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company reversed $1.4 million of uncertain tax liabilities 
relating to one State in which the Company operates as a result of the completion of a tax examination. The statute 
of limitations for the Company’s major tax jurisdictions remain open for examination for fiscal years 2005 through 
2008.  
 
Note 10.  Stock-Based Compensation 

Option Plan 

Brookfield Homes grants options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at the market price of the 
shares on the day the options are granted. In March 2009, the Company’s stockholders approved the Brookfield 
Homes 2009 stock option plan, under which a maximum of 3.0 million shares is authorized for issuance. No further 
awards will be made under the Company’s stock option plan that was adopted in November 2002. 
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During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company’s existing stock option awards made under the 2002 stock 
option plan were modified to eliminate the cash feature. As a result, the stock options outstanding at the time of the 
amendment were reclassified from accounts payable and other liabilities to additional paid-in-capital. The stock 
options vested at the time of the amendment were reclassified at their fair value of $0.1 million on the date the 
revised stock option plan became effective. The significant weighted average assumptions relating to the valuation 
of the Company’s stock options at the time of modification were as follows:  
 

  2009 
Dividend yield ...................................................................................................................................................   0.0% 
Volatility rate .....................................................................................................................................................   74% 
Risk-free interest rate.........................................................................................................................................   0.0% – 2.6% 
Expected option life (years) ...............................................................................................................................   0 – 6.5 
 
The fair value of each of the Company’s stock option awards is estimated at the grant date using a Black-Scholes 
option-pricing model that uses the assumptions noted in the table below.  The fair value of the Company’s stock 
option awards is expensed over the vesting period of the stock options. Expected volatility is based on historical 
volatility of the Company’s common stock. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the stock 
option award is based on the yield curve of a zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond with a maturity equal to the expected 
term of the stock option award granted. The Company uses historical data to estimate stock option exercises and 
forfeitures within its valuation model. The expected term of stock option awards granted for some participants is 
derived from historical exercise experience under the Company’s share-based payment plan and represents the 
period of time that stock option awards granted are expected to be outstanding. The expected term of stock options 
granted for the remaining participants is derived by using the simplified method. 

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company granted a total of 1,670,000 new stock options to eligible 
employees of which 1,000,000 options were subject to cliff vesting and 670,000 options were subject to graded 
vesting. The significant weighted average assumptions relating to the valuation of the Company’s stock options 
granted during the years ended December 31, 2009 subject to cliff vesting are as follows: 
 

   2009 

Dividend yield ....................................................................................................................................................   0.0% 
Volatility rate ......................................................................................................................................................   74% 
Risk-free interest rate..........................................................................................................................................   2.4% 
Expected option life (years) ................................................................................................................................   5.0 
 
The significant weighted average assumptions relating to the valuation of the Company’s stock options granted 
during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 subject to graded vesting are as follows: 
 

  2009   2008 

Dividend yield ................................................................................................................   0.0%   0.0% 
Volatility rate..................................................................................................................   74%   72% 
Risk-free interest rate......................................................................................................   2.9%   0.0 – 2.3% 
Expected option life (years) ............................................................................................   7.5   0 – 6.5 
 
The total compensation recognized in income related to the Company’s stock options during the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was expense of $0.5 million, income of $1.5 million and income of  
$5.7 million, respectively.  
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The following table sets out the number of common shares that employees of the Company may acquire under 
options granted under the Company’s stock option plans:  
 

 December 31, 2009  December 31, 2008  December 31, 2007 

 

 
 
 
 

Shares 

  Weighted 
 Average 
 Per Common 
Share Exercise
 Price 

 

Shares

  Weighted
 Average
 Per Common
 Share Exercise
 Price

  
 
 
 

Shares 

  Weighted 
 Average 
 Per Common 
Share Exercise
 Price 

Outstanding, beginning of  
year ................................ 

 
875,000 

  
 $ 30.57 

 
782,319 

 
 $ 30.11 

 
678,051 

  
 $ 21.02 

Granted ............................... 1,670,000    2.65 210,000  $ 15.90 260,000   $ 36.41 
Exercised ............................ (25,000)    2.65 (117,319)  $ 1.28 (155,732)   $ 1.06 
Cancelled ............................ (365,000)    24.92 —   — —    — 
Outstanding, end of year..... 2,155,000    10.21 875,000  $ 30.57 782,319   $ 30.11 
Options exercisable, end  

of year ............................ 
 

339,200 
  

 $ 29.35 
 

304,400 
 
 $ 30.39 

 
256,919 

  
 $ 18.15 

 

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during 2009 was $1.74 per option compared to $6.65 
per option in 2008. The intrinsic value of options exercised during 2009 and 2008 was $0.1 million and  
$1.0 million, respectively. Shares were issued out of treasury stock for 25,000 options exercised during the year. At 
December 31, 2009, the aggregate intrinsic value of options currently exercisable is $0.3 million and the aggregate 
intrinsic value of options outstanding is $0.3 million. A summary of the status of the Company’s unvested options 
included in equity as of December 31, 2009 and changes during the year ended December 31, 2009 is as follows: 
 December 31, 2009 
    Weighted 
    Average Fair 
 Shares   Value Per Share 

Unvested options reclassified to equity from accounts payable and other liabilities......... 570,600   $ 0.24 
Granted.............................................................................................................................. 1,670,000    1.74 
Vested ............................................................................................................................... (200,800)    0.42 
Cancelled........................................................................................................................... (224,000)    0.93 
Unvested options outstanding, December 31, 2009 .......................................................... 1,815,800   $ 1.51 

At December 31, 2009, there was $2.0 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested options, 
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 3.6 years. 

The following table summarizes information about stock options held by employees of the Company outstanding at 
December 31, 2009:  
 
 
 
 
Exercise Prices Per Share 

 Options 
 Outstanding at 
 December   
 31, 2009 

 Weighted 
 Average 
 Remaining 
 Contract Life 

  Options 
 Exercisable at
 December  
 31, 2009 

$ 1.74 .......................................................................................  46,000  3.2   46,000 
$ 21.94 .......................................................................................  70,000  4.2   70,000 
$ 36.25 .......................................................................................  94,000  5.2   75,200 
$ 52.00 .......................................................................................  90,000  6.2   54,000 
$ 36.41 .......................................................................................  160,000  7.2   64,000 
$ 15.90 .......................................................................................  150,000  8.2   30,000 
$ 2.65 .......................................................................................  1,545,000  9.2   ― 
  2,155,000  7.5   339,200 
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Deferred Share Unit Plans 

The Company has adopted a Deferred Share Unit Plan (“DSUP”) under which certain of its executive officers and 
directors may, at their option, receive all or a portion of their annual bonus awards or retainers, respectively, in the 
form of deferred share units. The annual awards are convertible into units based on the closing price of the 
Company’s shares on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of the award. The portion of the annual bonus 
award elected by an officer to be received in units may be increased by a factor of up to two times for purposes of 
calculating the number of units to be allocated under the plan. The deferred share unit plan also permits the 
Compensation Committee to award deferred share units to the Company’s executives in order to further align the 
recipients’ interests with those of our stockholders. An executive or director who holds units will receive additional 
units as dividends are paid on shares of the Company’s common stock, on the same basis as if the dividends were 
reinvested. The units vest over a five year period and participants are allowed to redeem the units only upon ending 
their employment with the Company through retirement, resignation, termination or death. The cash value of the 
units, when redeemed, will be equivalent to the market value of an equivalent number of shares of the Company’s 
common stock on such date.  

In addition, the Company has adopted a Senior Operating Management Deferred Share Unit Plan (“MDSUP”) under 
which certain senior operating management employees receive a portion of their annual compensation in the form of 
deferred share units. 

The DSUP and the MDSUP provide that no shares of the Company’s common stock will be issued, authorized, 
reserved, purchased or sold at any time in connection with units allocated and under no circumstances are units 
considered shares of common stock, or entitle any participant to the exercise of any other rights arising from the 
ownership of shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2009, the Company had granted 1,190,151 units under 
the DSUP of which 862,734 were outstanding at December 31, 2009, and of which 470,180 units are vested and 
392,554 units vest over the next five years. As of December 31, 2009, the Company had granted 73,375 units under 
the MDSUP, all of which were outstanding at December 31, 2009. The liability of $5.9 million (December 31, 2008 
– $5.0 million) related to the DSUP and MDSUP is included in accounts payable and other liabilities. The financial 
statement impact relating to the DSUP and MDSUP for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was  
expense of $3.4 million, income of $5.6 million and income of $12.4 million, respectively. Compensation 
recognized in income will fluctuate based on the year end share price. The following table sets out the number of 
deferred share units that executive officers, directors and senior operating management employees of the Company 
may redeem under the Company’s DSUP and MDSUP: 
  December 31, 2009 

Outstanding, January 1, 2009 ....................................................................................................................  867,257 
Granted......................................................................................................................................................  264,152 
Exercised...................................................................................................................................................  (183,104) 
Cancelled...................................................................................................................................................  (12,196) 
Outstanding, December 31, 2009 ..............................................................................................................  936,109 
Deferred Share Units Vested, December 31, 2009....................................................................................  543,555 

 
Note 11.  Other Interests in Consolidated Subsidiaries and Noncontrolling Interest 

Other interests in consolidated subsidiaries includes ownership interests of certain business unit presidents of the 
Company totaling $47.0 million (December 31, 2008 – $49.8 million). In the event a business unit president 
(“Minority Member”) of the Company is no longer employed by an affiliate of the Company, the Company has the 
right to purchase the Minority Member’s interest and the Minority Member has the right to require the Company to 
purchase their interest. Should such rights be exercised, the purchase price will be based on the then estimated bulk 
sales value of the business units’ net assets.  

The following table reflects the changes in the Company’s other interests in consolidated subsidiaries for the year  
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008: 
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 December 31 
  2009 2008 

Other interests in consolidated subsidiaries, beginning of year .............................................  $ 49,839   $ 52,946 
Net loss attributable to other interests in consolidated subsidiaries....................................... (4,316)  (17,622) 
Contributions from other interests in consolidated subsidiaries ............................................ 1,488  14,515 
Other interests in consolidated subsidiaries, end of year .......................................................  $ 47,011   $ 49,839 

Noncontrolling interest includes third party investments in unconsolidated entities of $7.3 million (December 31, 
2008 – $2.9 million). During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company began to consolidate an additional 
entity, which was previously accounted for using the equity method in accordance with ASC Topic 323 
“Investments – Equity Method and Joint Ventures.” The Company now has the ability to exercise control over the 
operating decisions of the entity and has contributed more than half of the subordinated financial support. The 
Company has accounted for its additional interest in this entity as a step acquisition. The purchase price has been 
allocated to housing and land inventory and the purchase price approximates the fair value of the additional interest 
obtained at acquisition. 
As a result of this acquisition, the impact to the Company’s consolidated balance sheet is as follows: 

  December 31 
   2009 

Increase in housing and land inventory .................................................................................................................    14,521 
Decrease in investment in unconsolidated entities ................................................................................................  (9,604) 
Increase in accounts payable and other liabilities..................................................................................................  (51) 
Increase in other interests in consolidated subsidiaries .........................................................................................  (4,866) 

In accordance with ASC Topic 810 “Consolidation” (formerly SFAS 160), on a retrospective basis, noncontrolling 
interest has been classified as a component of  total equity and the net loss on the consolidated statements of 
operations has been adjusted to include the net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest which for the year ended 
December 31, 2009 was $0.4 million (2008 – nil) and other interests in consolidated subsidiaries which for the year 
ended December 31, 2009 was $4.3 million (2008 – $17.6 million, respectively). 

Note 12.   Stockholders’ Equity 
(a) Preferred Stock – The Company granted rights to its common stockholders of record on April 3, 2009 to 
subscribe for 10,000,000 shares of 8% convertible preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share at a subscription price 
of $25 per share. On April 27, 2009, the stockholders of the Company fully subscribed for the 10.0 million shares of 
convertible preferred stock. The shares of convertible preferred stock are convertible, at the option of the 
stockholder, into shares of common stock, at a conversion rate of 3.571428571 shares of common stock per share of 
convertible preferred stock, which is equivalent to a conversion price of $7.00 per share, subject to future 
adjustment. Dividends on the convertible preferred stock are fully cumulative, without interest, from the date of 
original issuance of the convertible preferred stock and will be payable semi-annually in arrears, at the Company’s 
election, in cash, shares of common stock or a combination of cash and common stock. The convertible preferred 
stock is perpetual and does not have a maturity date; however, beginning June 30, 2014, if the 90-day volume 
weighted average market price of the common stock is greater than $14 per share, the Company may, at its option, 
require all preferred stock to be automatically converted into common shares. 
(b) Common Stock – During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company’s stockholders approved an 
amendment to the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the total number of 
authorized shares of common stock from 65,000,000 shares to 200,000,000 shares. 
(c) Treasury Stock – The Company’s Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program that allows the 
Company to repurchase in aggregate up to $144.0 million of the Company’s outstanding common shares, of which 
the remaining amount approved for repurchases at December 31, 2009 was $48.8 million. During the years ended 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company did not repurchase any shares. During the year ended December 31, 
2009, 1,608,567 treasury shares were issued pursuant to a stock dividend paid to the preferred stockholders. This 
issuance of treasury stock was accounted for on an average cost basis. The difference between the amount of the 
$10.0 million dividend and the average cost of the treasury shares of $72.8 million issued has been charged to 
retained earnings. 
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(d) Dividends – During the year, the Company’s Board of Directors paid a pro-rated cash dividend of $0.35 per 
preferred share on June 30, 2009 and a stock dividend of 1,608,567 common shares utilizing treasury stock, to the 
preferred stockholders on December 31, 2009. There were no preferred stock dividends in arrears for the year ended 
December 31, 2009. No dividends were paid during the year ended December 31, 2009 relating to the common 
shares outstanding. 

(e) Exercise of Stock Options – During the year ended December 31, 2009, an employee exercised options to 
purchase a total of 25,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an average price of $2.65 per share. During the 
year ended December 31, 2008, certain officers exercised options to purchase a total of 105,319 shares of the 
common stock at an average price of $1.22 per share. An additional 12,000 options were exercised during the year 
ended December 31, 2008 using the cash feature. 
 
Note 13.   (Loss) / Earnings Per Share 

Basic and diluted (loss) / earnings per share attributable to Brookfield Homes Corporations’ common stockholders 
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were calculated as follows: 

Years Ended December 31 
2009 2008 2007 

Numerator: 
Net (loss) / income attributable to Brookfield Homes Corporation..........  $ (27,709)   $ (115,615)   $ 15,627 
Less: Preferred income stock dividends...................................................   (13,500)    ―    ― 
Net loss attributable to common stockholders .........................................  $ (41,209)   $ (115,615)   $ 15,627 

Denominator:     
Basic average shares outstanding ............................................................   26,838   26,688    26,627 
Dilutive effect of stock options assumed to be exercised ........................   ―   ―    224 
Diluted average shares outstanding .........................................................   26,838   26,688    26,851 

Basic (loss) / earnings per share ...................................................................  $ (1.54)  $ (4.33)   $ 0.59 
Diluted (loss) / earnings per share ................................................................  $ (1.54)  $ (4.33)   $ 0.58 

 
At December 31, 2009, outstanding options to purchase 2.2 million shares were considered anti-dilutive and were 
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share (December 31, 2008 – 0.9 million). At December 31, 
2009, 10.0 million preferred shares convertible into 35.7 million common shares were outstanding and anti-dilutive 
and were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share. 
 
Note 14.  Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Other 

(a) The Company, in the normal course of its business, has issued performance bonds and letters of credit pursuant 
to various facilities which at December 31, 2009, amounted to $120.7 million (December 31, 2008 – $148.3 million, 
2007 – $211.9 million) and $8.5 million (December 31, 2008 – $11.6 million, 2007 – $19.3 million), respectively. 
The majority of these commitments have been issued to municipal authorities as part of the obligations of the 
Company in connection with the land servicing requirements.  

(b) The Company is party to various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. Management believes 
that none of these actions, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on the financial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.  

(c) When selling a home, the Company’s subsidiaries provide customers with a limited warranty. The Company 
estimates the costs that may be incurred under each limited warranty and records a liability in the amount of such 
costs at the time the revenue associated with the sale of each home is recognized. In addition, the Company has 
insurance in place where its subsidiaries are subject to the respective warranty statutes in the state where the 
Company conducts business which range up to 10 years for latent construction defects. Factors that affect the 
Company’s warranty liability include the number of homes sold, historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims, 
and cost per claim. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts 
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the amounts as necessary. The following table reflects the changes in the Company’s warranty liability for the years 
ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007: 

 2009 2008 

Balance, at beginning of year.....................................................................................................   $ 13,123   $ 17,844 
Payments made during the year .................................................................................................  (2,459)  (7,872) 
Warranties issued during the year ..............................................................................................  2,491  3,151 
Adjustments relating to pre-existing warranties.........................................................................  (29)  ―  
Balance, at end of year...............................................................................................................   $ 13,126   $ 13,123 
 
(d) The Company leases certain facilities under non-cancelable operating leases. Rental expense incurred by the 
Company amounted to $2.5 million for 2009 (December 31, 2008 – $3.6 million). At December 31, 2009, future 
minimum rent payments under these operating leases were as follows:  

  Lease 
  Payments 

2010 ........................................................................................................................................................................   $ 1,837 
2011 ........................................................................................................................................................................   $ 1,745 
2012 ........................................................................................................................................................................   $ 1,604 
2013 ........................................................................................................................................................................   $ 972 
Thereafter ................................................................................................................................................................   $ 596 

(e) The Company is exposed to financial risk that arises from the fluctuations in interest rates. The interest bearing 
assets and liabilities of the Company are mainly at floating rates and, accordingly, their fair values approximate 
carrying value. The Company would be negatively impacted, on balance, if interest rates were to increase. From 
time to time, the Company enters into interest rate swap contracts. As at December 31, 2009, the Company had six 
interest rate swap contracts outstanding which effectively fixed $200.0 million of the Company’s variable rate debt 
at an average rate of 7%. The contracts expire between 2010 and 2017. At December 31, 2009, the fair market value 
of the contracts was a liability of $14.2 million (2008 – liability of $25.6 million) and was included in accounts 
payable and other liabilities. Income of $11.4 million was recognized during the year ended December 31, 2009 
(2008 – expense of $19.4 million) and was included in other income / (expense). All interest rate swaps are recorded 
at fair market value through the statements of operations because hedge accounting has not been applied. See Note 
15 for additional disclosure. 

(f) The Company is exposed to financial risk that arises from fluctuations in its common stock price. To hedge 
against future deferred share unit payments, during July 2008, an equity swap transaction was entered into at an 
average cost of $12.31 per share on 1,022,987 of the Company’s common shares which matured during July 2009. 
During July 2009, the equity swap contract matured and a new equity swap transaction was entered into at an 
average cost of $3.60 per share on 1,022,987 shares, which matured in August 2009. In August 2009, the Company 
entered into a total return swap transaction at an average cost of $7.31 per share on 1,022,987 shares, maturing in 
August 2010. At December 31, 2009, the fair market value of the total return swap was an asset of $0.7 million and 
was included in accounts receivable and other assets (December 31, 2008 – liability of $0.2 million and was 
included in accounts payable and other liabilities). Income of $3.9 million was recognized during the year ended 
December 31, 2009 (2008 – expense of $11.3 million) and was included in selling, general and administrative 
expense which was offset by an expense of $3.9 million and income of $7.1 million. The total return swap is 
recorded at fair market value and is recorded through the statements of operations because hedge accounting has not 
been applied. See Note 15 for additional disclosure.  

 (g) Prior to the second quarter of 2009, the Company offered mortgage brokerage services to its home buying 
customers in each of its markets. The Company had agreements with various lenders to receive a fee on loans made 
by the lenders to customers that the Company introduces to the lenders. The Company provided mortgage 
origination services to its customers in the Washington D.C. Area and did not retain or service the mortgages it 
originated. The Company customarily sold all of the loans and loan servicing rights that it originated in the 
secondary market within a month of origination and on a limited recourse basis, generally limited to early payments, 
defaults, or fraud and misrepresentation. Effective April 1, 2009, the Company no longer originates and sells 
mortgages. 
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Note 15.  Fair Value Measurements 

ASC Topic 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (formerly SFAS 157) provides a framework for 
measuring fair value, expands disclosures about fair value measurements and establishes a fair value hierarchy 
which requires a company to prioritize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs in 
measuring fair value. 

The Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are as follows: 

 
 Fair Value Measurements 
 Using Significant  
 Observable Inputs (Level 2) 

Interest rate swap contracts at December 31, 2009 ...................................................................   $ (14,192) 

The fair value measurements for the interest rate swap contracts are determined based on notional amounts, terms to 
maturity, and the USD LIBOR rates. The LIBOR rates vary depending on the term to maturity and the conditions set 
out in the underlying swap agreements. 

 
 Fair Value Measurements 
 Using Significant  
 Unobservable Inputs (Level 3) 

Equity swap contracts at December 31, 2009...........................................................................  $ 674  

The fair value measurement for the equity swap contract is determined based on the notional amount, stock price, 
the number of underlying shares and the three month USD LIBOR rate. The Company performed a sensitivity 
analysis of the estimated fair value and the impact to the consolidated financial statements using alternative 
reasonable likely assumptions on December 31, 2009 and the impact to the consolidated financial statements was 
nominal. 

The Company’s non-financial assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are those housing and land assets 
and investment in unconsolidated entities for which the Company has recorded an impairment adjustment or a write-
off during the year. The table below sets forth information regarding the Company’s fair value measurement method 
and values basis used to determine fair value for the housing and land inventory impaired during the year. The 
estimated fair value of housing and land inventory deemed to be impaired by reportable segment as at December 31, 
2009 is as follows: 
 
 
 

 
Pre-Impairment 

Amount 

  
Total 

Impairment 

 Fair Value Measurement 
Using Significant 

Unobservable Inputs (Level 3) 
Southland / Los Angeles................................   $ 16,200   $ 2,600   $ 13,600 
Washington D.C. Area...................................   9,131   3,558   5,573 
Corporate and Other ......................................   10,938   5,000   5,938 
Total at December 31, 2009...........................   $ 36,269   $ 11,158   $ 25,111 

 

The estimated fair value of investments in unconsolidated entities deemed to be impaired by reportable segment as 
at December 31, 2009 is a follows: 
 
 
 

 
Pre-Impairment 

Amount 

  
Total 

Impairment 

 Fair Value Measurement 
Using Significant 

Unobservable Inputs (Level 3) 
Washington D.C. Area.................................... $6,428   $2,375   $4,053 

 
The fair value measurements for housing and land inventory were determined by comparing the carrying amount of 
an asset to its expected future cash flows. To arrive at the estimated fair value of housing and land inventory deemed 
to be impaired during the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company estimated the cash flow for the life of each 
project. Specifically, project by project, the Company evaluated the margins on homes that have been closed, 
margins on sales contracts which are in backlog, estimated margins with regard to future home sales over the life of 
the projects, as well as estimated margins with respect to future land sales. The Company evaluated and continues to 
evaluate projects where inventory is turning over more slowly than expected or whose average sales price and 
margins are declining and are expected to continue to decline. These projections take into account the specific 



BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION 
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(Tabular amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars except share and per share amounts) 
 
 

 
57

business plans for each project and management’s best estimate of the most probable set of economic conditions 
anticipated to prevail in the market area. Such projections generally assume current home selling prices, with cost 
estimates and sales rates for short-term projects consistent with recent sales activity. For longer-term projects, 
planned sales rates for 2010 and 2011 assume recent sales activity and normalized sales rates beyond 2011. If the 
future undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered to be impaired and is then 
written down to fair value less estimated selling costs.  

There are several factors that could lead to changes in the estimate of future cash flows for a given project. The most 
significant of these include the sales pricing levels actually realized by the project, the sales rate, and the costs 
incurred to construct the homes. The sales pricing levels are often inter-related with sales rates for a project, as a 
price reduction usually results in an increase in the sales rate. Further, pricing is heavily influenced by the 
competitive pressures facing a given community from both new homes and existing homes, including foreclosures.  

In light of the market conditions, the Company has reviewed all of its projects for impairment in accordance with the 
provisions of ASC Topic 360 “Property, Plant and Equipment” (formerly SFAS 144) and ASC Topic 820 “Fair 
Value Measurements and Disclosures” (formerly SFAS 157). For the year ended December 31, 2009, housing and 
land inventory on four projects with a carrying amount of $36.3 million was written down to its fair value of  
$25.1 million, resulting in an impairment charge of $11.2 million, which was included in impairment and write-off 
of option deposits. For the year ended December 31, 2008, housing and land inventory on 14 projects with a 
carrying amount of $407.5 million was written down to its fair value of $310.1 million, resulting in an impairment 
charge of $97.4 million, which was included in impairment and write-offs of option deposits. The lots impaired 
represent all of the lots within a project that is determined to be impaired. 
 
Note 16.  Segment Information  

As defined in ASC Topic 280, “Segmented Reporting” the Company has five operating segments. The Company has 
four reportable segments:  Northern California, Southland / Los Angeles, San Diego / Riverside, and the Washington 
D.C. Area. 

The Company is a land developer and residential homebuilder. The Company is organized and manages its business 
based on the geographical areas in which it operates. Each of the Company’s segments specializes in lot entitlement 
and development and the construction of single-family and multi-family homes. The Company evaluates 
performance and allocates capital based primarily on return on assets together with a number of other risk factors.  
Earnings performance is measured using segment operating income. The accounting policies of the segments are the 
same as those described in Note 1, “Significant Accounting Policies.” 

Years ended December 31  
 2009 2008 2007 
Revenues:      
Northern California .......................................................................................  $ 102,264   $ 128,878   $ 120,684 
Southland / Los Angeles ............................................................................... 79,125  93,828  205,990 
San Diego / Riverside.................................................................................... 89,502  86,745  89,556 
Washington D.C. Area .................................................................................. 93,558  135,416  155,489 
Corporate and Other...................................................................................... 11,531  4,136  11,635 
Total Revenues..............................................................................................  $ 375,980   $ 449,003   $ 583,354 
      
 Years ended December 31 
   2009    2008    2007 
Segment (Loss) / Income:      
Northern California .......................................................................................  $ (6,475)   $ (29,213)   $ 249 
Southland / Los Angeles ............................................................................... (4,926)  (18,923)  12,475 
San Diego / Riverside.................................................................................... (22,339)  (87,571)  (16,823) 
Washington D.C. Area .................................................................................. (11,722)  (33,147)  (40,471) 
Corporate and Other...................................................................................... (7,134)  (35,244)  (18,789) 
Loss before Income Taxes ............................................................................  $ (52,596)   $ (204,098)   $ (63,359) 
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 December 31 
  2009  2008 
Housing and Land Assets: (1)    
Northern California ...................................................................................................................    $ 201,164   $ 240,469 
Southland / Los Angeles ...........................................................................................................   122,504   143,526 
San Diego / Riverside................................................................................................................   336,458   366,467 
Washington D.C. Area ..............................................................................................................   226,768   246,805 
Corporate and Other..................................................................................................................   40,846   58,197 
Total ..........................................................................................................................................   $ 927,740   $ 1,055,464 

(1) Consists of housing and land inventory, investments in unconsolidated entities and consolidated land inventory not owned. 
 
The following tables set forth additional financial information relating to the Company’s reportable segments: 

 Years Ended December 31 
 2009  2008  2007 
Impairment of Housing and Land Inventory and Write-offs of Option 
Deposits:      

Northern California .......................................................................................  $ —   $ 21,172   $ 4,700 
Southland / Los Angeles ............................................................................... 2,600  15,695  3,300 
San Diego / Riverside.................................................................................... 1,195  42,498  32,982 
Washington D.C. Area .................................................................................. 12,900  35,759  46,648 
Corporate and Other...................................................................................... 7,268  —  — 
Total ..............................................................................................................  $ 23,963   $ 115,124   $ 87,630 

Equity in (Loss) / Earnings from Unconsolidated Entities:      
Northern California .......................................................................................  $ 2,382   $ —   $ 7,675 
Southland / Los Angeles ............................................................................... —  —  — 
San Diego / Riverside.................................................................................... —  1,974  3,832 
Washington D.C. Area .................................................................................. (317)  14  302 
Corporate and Other...................................................................................... (734)  1,314  936 
Total ..............................................................................................................  $ 1,331   $ 3,302   $ 12,745 

Impairment of Investments in Unconsolidated Entities:      
Northern California .......................................................................................  $ —   $ —   $ (7,894) 
Southland / Los Angeles ............................................................................... —    —    (7,135) 
San Diego / Riverside.................................................................................... (9,243)    (37,863)    — 
Washington D.C. Area .................................................................................. (3,435)    —    — 
Corporate and Other...................................................................................... (317)    —    — 
Total ..............................................................................................................  $ (12,995)   $ (37,863)   $ (15,029) 
 
  December 31 
  2009   2008 
Investments in Unconsolidated Entities:    
Northern California....................................................................................................................  $ —   $ — 
Southland / Los Angeles ............................................................................................................ 48,050  46,604 
San Diego / Riverside ................................................................................................................ 2,694  1,942 
Washington D.C. Area............................................................................................................... 34,971  42,838 
Corporate and Other .................................................................................................................. 6,762  13,877 
Total...........................................................................................................................................  $ 92,477   $ 105,261 

All revenues are from external customers originates in the United States and all the Company’s assets are in the 
United States. There were no customers that contributed 10% or more of the Company’s total revenues during the 
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.   



BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION 
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

(Tabular amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars except share and per share amounts) 
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Note 17. Subsequent Events 

In accordance with ASC Topic 855, the Company has evaluated subsequent events and transactions up to and 
including February 18, 2010 and where necessary, has made the appropriate disclosure. 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial 
Disclosure 
 
None. 
 

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures 
 
Conclusions Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

As of December 31, 2009, an evaluation of the effectiveness of our “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined 
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) was 
carried out under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief 
Financial Officer (“CFO”). Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that as of December 31, 
2009, our disclosure controls and procedures are effective: (i) to ensure that information required to be disclosed by 
us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within 
the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms; and (ii) to ensure that 
information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and 
communicated to our management, including our CEO and CFO, to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure. 

It should be noted that while our management, including the CEO and CFO, believe our disclosure controls and 
procedures provide a reasonable level of assurance that such controls and procedures are effective, they do not 
expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control 
system, no matter how well conceived or operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the 
objectives of the control system are met. 

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2009, 
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 
 
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, 
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our 
management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of 
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting using the framework in Internal Control – 
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(“COSO”). Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework, our 
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2009.  
We have not identified any material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. 

Internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems 
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and 
presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has been audited by 
Deloitte & Touche, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is 
included herein.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Brookfield Homes Corporation 
 
We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Brookfield Homes Corporation and subsidiaries (the 
“Company”) as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  The Company's management 
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.  Our audit 
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the 
company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected 
by the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or 
detected on a timely basis.  Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
 
In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 31, 2009, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 
 
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009 of the Company and 
our report dated February 18, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.  
 
 

 
 
Independent Registered Chartered Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
Toronto, Canada 
February 18, 2010 
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Item 9B.  Other Information 
None. 
 

PART III 
 
 

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 
Information about our directors and the remaining information called for by this item is incorporated by reference 
from our 2010 definitive proxy statement, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not 
later than April 30, 2010 (120 days after the end of our fiscal year). The following table provides the name, age and 
position of each of our current executive officers and significant employees.  
Name  Age  Position Held 

Executive Officers:    
Ian G. Cockwell   62  President and Chief Executive Officer 
Craig J. Laurie   38  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
William B. Seith   60  Executive Vice President, Risk Management 
     

Significant Employees:     
Stephen P. Doyle   52  President, Brookfield Homes San Diego Holdings LLC 
Adrian Foley   47  President, Brookfield Homes Southland Holdings LLC 
Robert Hubbell   52  President, Brookfield Washington LLC 
John J. Ryan   50  President, Brookfield Homes Bay Area Holdings LLC 
Richard T. Whitney   46  President, Brookfield California Land Holdings LLC 
    
 
Ian Cockwell was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer in October 2002 and has served in various senior 
executive positions with our company since 1994. 
 
Craig Laurie was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in October 2008. Mr. Laurie, 
prior to becoming an employee of the Company, was employed by Brookfield Asset Management LLC, a subsidiary 
of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. In this capacity, Mr. Laurie served as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of 
Crystal River Capital, Inc., which is externally managed by a subsidiary of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. 
Mr. Laurie has served as Chief Financial Officer of Crystal River from April 2007 and from June 2003 to March 
2007 served as the Chief Financial Officer of Brookfield Properties Corporation, and has held various other 
positions with Brookfield Asset Management Inc. and associated companies. Mr. Laurie joined Brookfield Asset 
Management Inc. in 1997 and holds a Chartered Accountant designation.  
 
William Seith was appointed Executive Vice President, Risk Management in October 2002 and has served in various 
senior executive positions with our company since 1994.  
  
Stephen Doyle was appointed President of our San Diego / Riverside business unit in 1996.  
 
Adrian Foley was appointed President of our Southland / Los Angeles business unit in 2004 and has served in 
various senior executive positions with our company since 1996.  
 
Robert Hubbell was appointed President of our Washington D.C. Area business unit in 1998 and has served in 
various senior executive positions with our company since 1990.  
 
John Ryan was appointed President of our San Francisco Bay Area business unit in 1995. 
  
Richard Whitney was appointed President of Brookfield California Land Holdings LLC in 2002 and has served in 
various senior executive positions with our company since 1994.  
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Item 11.  Executive Compensation 

The information called for by this item is incorporated by reference from our 2010 definitive proxy statement, which 
will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than April 30, 2010 (120 days after the end of 
our fiscal year). 
 
 
Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related 
Stockholder Matters 

The information called for by this item is incorporated by reference from our 2010 definitive proxy statement, which 
will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than April 30, 2010 (120 days after the end of 
our fiscal year), except for the information required by this item with respect to equity compensation plans which is 
set forth under Item 5 of this annual report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

The information called for by this item is incorporated by reference from our 2010 definitive proxy statement, which 
will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than April 30, 2010 (120 days after the end of 
our fiscal year). 
 
 
Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

The information called for by this item is incorporated by reference from our 2010 definitive proxy statement, which 
will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than April 30, 2010 (120 days after the end of 
our fiscal year). 

 
 

PART IV 
 
 

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 

 (a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:  

 (i) Financial Statements: 
   See Item 8 of this report, beginning on page 34.  

 (ii) Financial Statement Schedules: 
   Schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and 

Exchange Commission have either been incorporated in the consolidated financial statements and 
accompanying notes or are not applicable to us.  

 (iii) Exhibits: 
 Refer to the Exhibit Index to this report. 
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SIGNATURES 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 19th day of  
February, 2010. 

 BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION 
 

By: 

 
 

/s/ IAN G. COCKWELL 
 Ian G. Cockwell 

President and Chief Executive Officer 
   

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature  Title  Date 
     
    
/s/ ROBERT L. STELZL    
Robert L. Stelzl  Chairman of the Board  February 19, 2010
    
    
/s/ IAN G. COCKWELL    
Ian G. Cockwell  President and Chief Executive Officer and 

Director (Principal Executive Officer) 
 February 19, 2010

    
    
/s/ CRAIG J. LAURIE    February 19, 2010
Craig J. Laurie  Executive Vice President and Chief 

Financial Officer (Principal Financial 
Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) 

 

    
    
/s/ ROBERT A. FERCHAT    
Robert A. Ferchat  Director  February 19, 2010
    
    
/s/ J. BRUCE FLATT     
J. Bruce Flatt  Director  February 19, 2010
    
    
/s/ BRUCE T. LEHMAN    
Bruce T. Lehman  Director  February 19, 2010
    
    
/s/ ALAN NORRIS    
Alan Norris  Director  February 19, 2010
    
    
/s/ TIMOTHY R. PRICE  Director  February 19, 2010
Timothy R. Price    
    
    
/s/ DAVID M. SHERMAN    
David M. Sherman  Director  February 19, 2010
    
    
/s/ MICHAEL D. YOUNG    
Michael D. Young  Director  February 19, 2010



 

 

EXHIBIT INDEX 
 

Exhibit Description 

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the 
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 (Commission File No. 001-31524) filed with the 
Commission. 

3.2 By-laws – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on 
Form 10 (Commission File No. 001-31524) filed with the Commission. 

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant – 
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the 
Commission on March 25, 2009. 

3.4 Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations for 8% Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A – 
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on 
February 24, 2009. 

4.1 Description of Common Stock (see Article FOURTH of Exhibit A to Exhibit 3.1) – Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 10 (Commission File 
No. 001-31524) filed with the Commission. 

4.2 Revolving Credit Facility dated June 12, 2006 – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the 
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on August 9, 2006. 

4.3 Amendment to Revolving Credit Facility dated March 5, 2007 – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
99.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 5, 2007. 

4.4 Amendment to Revolving Credit Facility dated October 11, 2007 – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
99.1 of the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 17, 2007. 

4.5 Amendment to Revolving Credit Facility dated February 7, 2008 – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
99.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 7, 2008. 

4.6 Amendment to Revolving Credit Facility dated July 23, 2008 – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 
of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on July 25, 2008. 

4.7 Amendment to Revolving Credit Facility dated October 8, 2008 – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
99.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 10, 2008. 

4.8 Amendment to Revolving Credit Facility dated December 17, 2008 – Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 99.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on December 
19, 2008. 

4.9 Amendment to Revolving Credit Facility dated January 27, 2009 – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
99.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 2, 2009. 

4.10 Amendment to Revolving Credit Facility dated April 30, 2009 – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
99.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 4, 2009. 

4.11 Loan Agreement dated February 26, 2009 between Brookfield Homes Holdings Inc. and Brookfield (US) 
Corporation – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q filed with the Commission on May 8, 2009. 

4.12 Loan Agreement Amendment dated May 21, 2009 between Brookfield Homes Holdings Inc. and 
Brookfield (US) Corporation – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Registrant’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 26, 2009. 

4.13 Loan Agreement Amendment dated July 31, 2009 between Brookfield Homes Holdings Inc. and 
Brookfield (US) Corporation – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Registrant’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 5, 2009. 

4.14* Letter furnished to Securities and Exchange Commission agreeing to furnish certain debt instruments. 
10.1 License Agreement – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Registration 

Statement on Form 10 (Commission File No. 001-31524) filed with the Commission. 
10.2† Form of Stock Option Plan – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Registration 

Statement on Form 10 (Commission File No. 001-31524) filed with the Commission. 
10.3† Management Services Agreement – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current 

Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 6, 2009. 
10.4† 2009 Stock Option Plan Award Letter – Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on 

Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 6, 2009. 
10.5† Departure Agreement – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on 

Form 10-K filed with the Commission on February 13, 2009.  
10.6† 2009 Stock Option Plan – Incorporated by reference to Appendix B of the Registrant’s Schedule 14A 

filed with the Commission on February 19, 2009. 
10.7†* Deferred Share Unit Plan. 



 

 

21.1 List of Subsidiaries – Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 of the Registrant’s Registration 
Statement on Form 10 (Commission File No. 001-31524) filed with the Commission. 

23.1* Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP 
31.1* Rule 13a-14(a) certification by Ian G. Cockwell, President and Chief Executive Officer. 
31.2* Rule 13a-14(a) certification by Craig Laurie, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. 
32.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 

1350. 

* Filed herewith 

† Executive Officers management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement 

Copies of certain of the exhibits filed with or incorporated by reference into this annual report on Form 10-K do not accompany 
copies of this annual report on Form 10-K made available to our stockholders. We will furnish a copy of any of such exhibits to 
any stockholder requesting the same. 



 

 

EXHIBIT 31.1 
 

CERTIFICATIONS 
 
I, Ian G. Cockwell, certify that: 
 
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Brookfield Homes Corporation; 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 

controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over 
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

 (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

 (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the 
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

 (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual  
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting; and 

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 

control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s Board of 
Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

 
 

Date: February 19, 2010 
 
By: /s/ IAN G. COCKWELL 
 Ian G. Cockwell 
 President and Chief Executive Officer 

 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT 31.2 
 

CERTIFICATIONS 
 

I, Craig J. Laurie, certify that: 
 
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Brookfield Homes Corporation; 
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 

controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 5(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over 
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

 (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

 (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles; 

 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the 
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

 (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual 
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting; and 

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 

control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s Board of 
Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

 
 

Date: February 19, 2010 
 
By: /s/ CRAIG J. LAURIE 
 Craig J. Laurie 
 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT 32.1 
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

 
In connection with the annual report of Brookfield Homes Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the 
period ended December 31, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 
“Report”), each of Ian G. Cockwell, Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Craig Laurie, Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of their knowledge: 
 
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 

1934; and 
 
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and 

results of operations of the Company. 
 
 
 

Date: February 19, 2010 
 
By: /s/ IAN G. COCKWELL  
 Ian G. Cockwell 
 President and Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
By: /s/ CRAIG J. LAURIE  
 Craig J. Laurie 
 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  

 
 
 



Forward-Looking Statements: This Annual Report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the United States fed-
eral securities laws. The words “may,” “believe,” “will,” “target,” “aim,” “goal,” “expect,” “estimate,” “project,” “future,” “plan” and other 
expressions which are predictions of or indicate future events and trends and which do not relate to historical matters identify forward-
looking statements. The forward-looking statements in this annual report include statements with respect to:  our 2010 outlook and goals, 
lot acquisition opportunities, foundation for future growth, targeted lot entitlements, the equilibrium between housing supply and demand 
and the timing thereof, the creation and location of an undersupply of housing units, cash flow generation, future value creation, expected 
results of operations and the sources of and strategies for our growth. Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-looking statements 
because they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual results to differ materially 
from the anticipated future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause actual results to 
differ materially from those set forward in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: changes in general economic, 
real estate and other conditions; mortgage rate and availability changes; availability of suitable undeveloped land at acceptable prices; 
adverse legislation or regulation; ability to obtain necessary permits and approvals for the development of our land; availability of labor 
or materials or increases in their costs; ability to develop and market our master-planned communities successfully; confidence levels 
of consumers; ability to raise capital on favorable terms; adverse weather conditions and natural disasters; relations with the residents 
of our communities; risks associated with increased insurance costs or unavailability of adequate coverage and ability to obtain surety 
bonds; competitive conditions in the homebuilding industry, including product and pricing pressures; our debt and leverage; ability to 
retain our executive officers, relationships with our affiliates, and additional risks and uncertainties referred to in our Form 10-K and other 
SEC filings, many of which are beyond our control. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. However, any further disclosures made on related 
subjects in subsequent reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K should be consulted.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Brookfield Homes welcomes inquiries from shareholders, analysts, media representatives and other interested parties. 
 Questions relating to investor relations or media inquiries can be directed to Linda Northwood, Director, Investor Relations 
at (858) 481-2567 or via e-mail at lnorthwood@brookfieldhomes.com. Inquiries regarding financial results should be 
directed to Craig Laurie, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at (858) 481-2568 or 
via e-mail at claurie@brookfieldhomes.com.

Shareholder questions relating to address changes and share certificates should be 
directed to the company’s Transfer Agent and Registrar, BNY Mellon Shareowner Services: 
P.O. Box 358015, Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8015 or 480 Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ 07310-1900
Tel: 201-680-6578 or toll free in North America: 800-522-6645
Website: www.bnymellon.com/shareowner/isd   E-mail: shrrelations@melloninvestor.com

BROOKFIELD HOMES CORPORATION

8500 Executive Park Avenue, Suite 300

Fairfax, Virginia 22031

Tel  (703) 270-1700

Fax (703) 270-1401

www.brookfieldhomes.com

A Land Development and Homebuilding Company


